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SP TRANSMISSION PLC -
STRATEGIC REPORT

The directors present their Strateg}c Report on SP Transmission plc (’;the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
This includes an overview of the Company’s structure, strategic outlook including 2020 performance, and principal risks
and uncertainties. .

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK

" Introduction A _

The principal activity of the Company, registered company number SC189126, is the ownership of the electricity
transmission network within the Central and Southern Scotland area. In accordance with the British Electricity Trading and
Transmission Arrangements (“BETTA”), National Grid operates the Great Britain transmission system, including balancing
of generation and demand in Scotland. The Company retains network ownership and all associated respon5|b|I|t|es
including development of the network. This activity will continue for the foreseeable future.

The ultimate parent of the Company is Iberdrola, S.A. ("Iberdrola”) which is listed on the Madrid stock exchange. The
immediate parent of the Company is Scottish Power Energy Networks Holdings Limited (“SPENH”), the holding company -
* of the Scottish Power Energy Networks Holdings Limited group (“SPENH Group” or “Energy Networks”). Scottish Power
Limited (“SPL”) is the United Kingdom (“UK") holdmg Company of the Scottish Power Limited group (“ScottishPower”) of
which the Company is a member.

Energy Networks owns three re‘gulated electricity network businesses in the UK. The Company and fellow subsidiary
companies, SP Distribution plc and SP Manweb plc, are ‘asset-owner companies’ holding the. regulated assets and
Electricity Distribution and Transmission licences of ScottishPower, and are regulated monopolies. Energy Networks owns
and operates the network of cables and power lines transporting electricity to around 3.5 million connected customers in
Central and Southern Scotland, Cheshire, Merseyside, North Shropshire and North Wales.

The Company is a transmission network owner. The electricity transmission network consists of the high-voltage electricity
wires that transport electricity from power stations to distribution system entry points or, in certain cases, direct to end-
users’ premises via a national network of high-voltage assets.

The Company is a natural monopoly and is governed by The Office of Gas and Electricity Markets (“Ofgem”) via a regulatory
price control. The primary objective of the regulation of the electricity networks is the protection of consumers’ interests
" while ensuring that demand can be met and companies are able to finance their activities. Price controls are the method
* by which the amount of allowed revenue is set for network companies over the period of the price control. Price control
processes are designed to cover the Company’s efficient costs and allow it to earn a reasonable return, provided the
Company acts in an efficient manner, delivers value for customers, and meets Ofgem targets. Price controls are delivered
on a regulatory basis covering April to March of any given year. Therefore, a majority of the Company's performance and
key deliverables are measured and reported on this basis.

COoVID-19 ¢

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a pandemic, due to its rapid spread
throughout the world. In common with many governments, the UK and devolved Governments put in place restrictive
measures to contain the spread of the virus. These have been in place to various extents since March 2020 and are
expected to endure in some form during 2021 and perhaps 2022.'Th_e specific risks presented by COVID-19 are considered
as part of the ‘Principal Risks and Uncertainties’ section of the Strategic Report. Whilst acknowledging the risks faced by
the Company, COVID-19 is not deemed to impact the conclusion that the Company will continue as a going concern.

As the COVID-19 crisis has developed, ScottishPower has been committed to taking all necessary measures to help to
protect the safety and wellbeing of its employees, its customers and the communities it serves. At a Group level, and across
its Enérgy Networks operations, ScottishPower has been working closely with government departments, Ofgem and
industry bodies to ensure that it continues to follow the latest advice. Through its membership of Energy UK and the Energy
Networks Association (“ENA”), ScottishPower contributed to the industry agreement announced by The Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (“BEIS”) on 18 March 2020 on the lmportance of supporting vulnerable people
through the disruption caused by COVID-19. '

As part of the response to COVID-19, Iberdrola successfully undertook a global audit of its COVID-19 mitigation protocols,
which was overseen and certified by the Spanish Association for Standardization and Certification (“AENOR”).
ScottishPower played an active part in this audit and received independent AENOR certification for its policies, procedures
and compliance with local regulations. At the group level, ScottishPower has implemented several measures to ensure it
is well positioned to respond to the significant chailenges posed by COVID-19. These include ongoing reviews of business
continuity, IT resilience, supply chain operations, and the safety and wellbeing of critical and non-critical employees.
Employees have received regular communications updates on developments and the ScottishPower website has been
routinely updated with the latest information on how it is responding to the crisis. Further detail is provided in the
‘Employees’ section of the Strategic Report. '
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STRATEGIC OUTLOOK continued. : :

The operational response to COVID-19 has been of the highest priority to Energy Networks. Activities have included:
initiating business continuity plans to ensure resilience across network control room operations; undertaking an
engineering review of the physical network and developing a resilience plan to ensure continuity of supply for essential
services; reviewing supply chain integrity, stock levels and fuel provision; reviewing arrangements for public facing activity
to ensure that faults can be addressed and network resilience supported without exposing employees, customers or
members of the public to adverse risks; and engaging constructively and proactively with UK resilience and emergency -
preparedness bodies. Energy Networks has worked closely on arrangements at an industry level with the ENA. The Energy
Networks website has presented information and updates intended to provide reassurance to customers and stakeholders
that it has robust, well-practised contingency plans in place to make sure its resilient network continues to deliver services
during any challenging times. This is available at www.spenergynetworks.co.uk. In addition, regular reports are provided
to Ofgem on any COVID-19-related matters and its operational performance.

Electricity networks are essential to the transportation of energy from generators to homes and businesses and are critical
national infrastructure. Without them, reliable essential services could cease to operate, and life would become harder for
everyone, particularly the most vulnerable. Those who work for network operators are critical to maintaining these
supplies. Throughout the pandemic Energy Networks has ensured:

o asafe working environment is in place for its employees that complies with the Iatest government guidance; and
« a prioritisation of ‘essential works’ i.e. those that are necessary for the short to medlum term security of supply or for
the protection and safety of consumers and workers.

Energy Networks will continue to provide non-essential services to the extent that it can, balancing the impact on its
workforce with the impact on its network and its customers.

Energy Networks has regularly engaged with BEIS’ Downstream Gas and Electricity Resilience team and Ofgem since March
2020. During the-initial height of the pandemic, sessionsAwere held at least twice weekly and provided a central source of
industry information and sharing of best practice. Regular reports provided by BEIS allowed cross-sector comparisons and
a UK perspective as the pandemic unfolded.

The pandemic has resulted in a reprioritisation of Energy Networks’' operational activities and resources, and the
Governments’ restrictions to civic life will ‘continue to have impacts on business operations. Throughout the COVID-19
pandemic, Energy Networks has done everything possible to ensure its networks operate as close to normal as possible,-
and all of ScottishPower’s regulated businesses are undertaking works necessary to meet their licence conditions. Where
activities have stopped or been delayed, there is a clear link to restrictions placed on them by third parties which has been
captured in Ofgem reporting. :

Operating review

During 2020, the Company moved into the final year of the RIIO-T1 (Revenue = Incentives + Innovation + Qutputs) eight-
year price control where the Company’s focus has been on delivering the commitments set out in its RIIO-T1 business plan.
The Company’s asset replacement related programme continues to be on course for a successful delivery. For the current
control period, the Company’s target has been to achieve 100% delivery by 31 March 2021, with performance to be
confirmed with Ofgem as part of the RIIO-T1 close-out reporting. The Company’s comprehensive planning approach has
enabled it to achieve more than what was originally forecast from its business plan without increasing network risk.

The Western Link High Voltage Direct Current (“HVDC”) (“Western Link”) project is a joint venture with National Grid
Electricity Transmission (“NGET"”) to increase the interconnection capacity between Scotland and England. In January 2020,
the Western HVDC Link suffered a cable fault in the southern onshore location, which was the cause of an outage for the .
link. The Company and NGET worked closely with the cable manufacturer and the repair works were completed and the
link returned to $ervice on 7 February 2020. Ofgem have opened an investigation into both the Company and NGET in
relation to compliance with their respective obligations relating to the Western Link, and the Company is constructively
- working with Ofgem on this investigation. ’ ' '

During 2020, Crossdykes and Tralorg wind farms were connected to the.Company’s network. The Company’s forecast for
wind farm connections for the RIIO-T1 period has increased from 1,620 megawatts (“MW”) to 1,950 MW, following
commencement of construction works for the Nearth Na Goithe offshore wind farm (448 MW). The Company contlnues
to work closely with developers to seek early connections where it is cost efficient to do so.
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STRATEGIC OUTLOOK continued _ ,
Innovation has continued to be a key focus in 2020 as part of the RIIO-T1 regime to find new and better solutions for the
Company’s customers. For example, Project Phoenix is being trialled over the next twelve months and will help address
system issues to ensure customers receive an uninterrupted and stable supply of electricity as the company moves to a
sustainable and net zero energy system. The project will provide an innovative solution to help ensure a robust and resilient
energy system that can adapt to meet the needs of customers, both now, and well into the future. There are plans to roll
out the technology across the Company’s operational area once complete.

In December 2019, following a Iengthy period of scrutiny and oversight, Energy Networks submitted. its final transmission
business plan (worth £1.4 billion) to Ofgem for the RIIO-T2 price control, which will run from April 2021 to March 2026. In
December 2020, Ofgem published its Final Determination for the RIIO-T2 electricity transmission price control proposing
an allowed total expenditure of £1.3 billion. However, there has been criticism from network operators in the public
domain in relation to Ofgem’s proposed cost of equity proposals for transmission companies (allowed return on equity of
4.02%). On.3 March 2021, Energy Networks made an application to the Competition and Markets Authority (“CMA”) for
permission to appeal against Ofgem’s RIIO-T2 Final Determination on a number of discrete technical issues. This application
was accepted by the CMA on the 31st March 2021. The CMA process will therefore conclude by the end of October 2021.

Brexit

Though the UK left the European Unlon (“EU”) on 31 January 2020, all EU laws continued to apply until 31 December 2020
Following intensive negotiation, a UK/EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement was concluded on 24 December 2020 and
was ratified by the Council of the European Union on-28 April 2021. The conclusion of the Trade and Cooperation
Agreement greatly reduced many of the risks Brexit posed for ScottishPower, and so the Company.

A cross-business operational working-group enabled ScottishPower, and so the Company, to monitor Brexit risks at all
stages, and has ensured that they are now fully integrated into the assessment of risks to the business. Further details of
the remaining Brexit risks faced by the Company are provided in the ‘Principal Risks.and Uncertainties’ section of the
Strategic Report. ScottishPower, and so the Company, shall continue to monitor the consequences of Brexit, and will take
mitigating action as appropriate.

Values in action .
Net zero continues to attract huge public attention. Scottish Power and Energy Networks are collaborating with the
Scottish, Welsh and UK Governments to deliver their sustainability plans and meet the challenges of the Iow¥carbon_
revolution, with a focus on accommodating increasing electrical flows associated with growing low-carbon energy sources
and meeting the needs of both its current and future customers. Both place great value in all parts of society benefiting
from the low-carbon revolution, access to EVs and the health benefits of low or zero emissions. There has been much
d.eba'te around the role of anticipatory investment for low-carbon solutions. The future is uncertain, and whilst it has
encountered reluctance from Ofgem to invest ahead of need, ScottishPower contends that without investment in Energy
Networks’ infrastructure now, there will be significant lost opportunities that could slow down the pace required to meet
‘the net zero deadline.

In 2020, Energy Networks further facilitated competition'by developing design tools to quickly identify where the adoption
of flexibility can save consumers money on upgrading the network. In September 2020, Energy Networks launched its
largest ever tender for flexibility services which aims to procure a total of 960 MW of active power and 38 mega volt amps
of reactive power (“MVAr”) for the period 2023 to 2028. From the first tender round, which concluded in February 2021,
the business accepted bids for a total of 139.6 MW. The next tender round process commenced in March 2021.

In March 2018, the Company announced the launch of a Green Economy Fund (“GEF”), which is referred to in more detail
in the Customers section at page 10. Working alongside the Scottish Government, Ofgem and independent economic
advisors, funding has been made available for initiatives focused on delivering sustainable low-carbon transport and
heating. The GEF aims to further Scotland’s ambitious green energy plans and at the same time create economic growth
opportunities for local communities. The GEF awarded £20 million to 35 projects through three rounds of funding, ensuring
that all of the available funds are committed. Projects were selected that not only meet the overall aims of the scheme,
but can also be delivered within the two years when this funding is available. In the Company’s next transmission price
~ control, Ofgem has permitted a similar- £5 million fund for 2021-2026, called the ‘Net Zero Fund’.

Energy Networks has earned the following awards in 2020:

* Energy Networks was benchmarked first in the UK by Institute of Customer Service, scoring 89.9 in this survey, higher
than both the utilities sector and overall sectors.

¢ The GEF won the Community Engagement Award at the prestigious PIanet Mark Awards.
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2020 PERFORMANCE
The table below provides key financial |nformat|on relatmg to the Company’s performance during the year.
) Revenue* - Operating profit* Capital investment**
} 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Finandial key performance indicators £m . £m £m £m £m ' £m
SP Transmission ple . . 401.3 400.2 229.7 - ° 2251 176.1 185.4

*  Revenue and operating profit are presented on page 25.
** Capital investment is presented within Note 3 on page 37.

Allowabtle transmission revenues have increased under RIIO-T1 by £1.1 million.

Operating profit increased by £4.6 million to £229.7 millionin 2020, mainly reflecting a decrease in net operating expenses
of £7.4 million offset by increased depreciation of £3.7 million.

In response to COVID-19, 2020 capex programmes were.re- prioritiséd to network resilience, fault resolution and.continuity
of supply for essential services. The Company’s capital investment decreased by £9:3 million to £176.1 million in 2020,
reflecting higher 2019 Western Link HVDC capital expenditure. ) :

The Company’s Electricity Transmission Licence (“the licence”) requires the directors to prepare regulatdry accounts to 31
March for each regulatory year. Reporting of operational data is aligned to the regulatory year end. Consequently, the
latest available data has been disclosed in the tables below. The tables below provide key-non-financial performance
- indicators relating to the.Company’s operational assets and operational performance.
s - - Year énded  Year ended
‘ . . 31 March 31 March
Operational assets ‘ - ' ~ - 2020 2019

Franchise area-(km?) ' v - - 22,950 22,950
System maximum demand (MW) o ' o 3,343 3,318
Length of overhead lines (circuit km) . ) 3,709 3,740

Length of underground cables (circuit km) : - . 636 . 603

Yearended  Year ended.
31 March 31 March

Operational performance ) . Notes 2020 2019
Annual system availability : (a) 93.90% 95.31%
Winter peak system availability ' . (b} 95.64% 97.55%
Annual reliability of supply : ’ . . {c) 99.99% 99.99%-
Annual number of loss of supply incidents ’ (d) 9 17
1. Incentivised incidents ' ' . o : 1 9
2. Non incentivised incidents : . ) ) .8 8

{a) Annual system availability details the overall availabilify of the licensee’s transmission circuits, with any reduction below 100% bé_aing due to planned
outages and faults. Annual system availability decreased this year due to an increase in planned (construction and maintenance) outages.

(b) Winter peak system availability is the average system availability over the three months of December, January and February. Winter peak system
availability decreased this year due to an increase in planned (construction and maintenance) outages and unplanned (faults) outages.

(c) Annual reliability of supply is provided by the system operator, National Grid Electricity Transmission (UK).

(d) Any event on the licensee’s transmission system that causes electricity not to be supplied. Incentivised incidents are incidents where the loss of

! supply is longer than three minutes and non-incentivised incidents are those which do not cause a loss of supply to customers and those that cause

a loss of supply to customers that last less than three minutes. :

Although these metrics give a view on asset network performance, it must be pointed out that performance can be
impacted by factors that are outwith the control of the transmission licensee for example, faults due to bad weather.
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LIQUIDITY AND CASH MANAGEMENT

~ Cash and netdebt . :
Net cash flows from operating activities decreased by £0.5 million to £293.4 million for the year, as detailed on page 27.
As detailed in the table below, net debt increased by £19.9 million to £1,378.5 million. Cash decreased by £5.6 million. Net
loans payable to Iberdrola Group companies increased by £12.8 million and external loans payable increased by £0.3
million. Lease liabilities increased £1.2 million to £12.2 million.

C _ X 2020 2019

Analysis of net debt Notes £m £m
. Cash ’ . (a) 63 . 119

Loans receivable from Iberdrola group companies ' : (b) © 193 -
Loans payable to Iberdrola group companies - ' (c) (1,045.0) (1,012.9)
External loans payable - . (© (346.9) (346.6)
Lease liabilities . ' (d) (12.2) (11.0)
Net debt (1,378.5) (1,358.6)

(a) As detailed on the balance sheet on page 24.
{b) As detailed in Note 7 on page 41.

(c) As detailed in Note 13 on page 47.

(d) As detailed in Note 4°on page 39.

Capital and debt structure

The Company is funded by a combination of debt and equity in accordance with the dlrectors objectives of establishing
an appropriately funded business consistent with the requirements of the Utilities Act 2000 and the objectives of the
Iberdrola Group. All of the equity is held by the Company’s immediate parent undertaking, SPENH. Treasury services are
provided by SPL. Further details of the treasury policy for ScottishPower.and how it manages it is included in Note 8. |

OUTLOOK FOR 2021 AND BEYOND -

In line with ScottishPower’s strategic goals and its regulatory obligations, Energy Networks is maintaining significant
investment in the UK’s énergy networks. Over-the last ten years, Energy Networks has invested around £6.0 billion in the
transmission and distribution networks, and during the next ten years, Energy Networks plans to invest a further £8.5
billion to modernise and improve service to customers. Energy Networks’ ten-year investment plan is reviewed annuaIIy
in detail to ensure it is aligned with and continue to support UK Government energy pollcy .

In 2020, the UK Government announced the ban on selling new dlesel petrol and hybnd cars wnll be brought forward to
2030 under the Prime Minister's ‘10 Point Plan for a Green Industrial Revolution’, announced in November 2020. The
Scottish Government target remains at 2032 as announced in 2017.To enable the wide-scale rollout of EVs and facilitate
governments' net zero targets, it is key that the UK’s electricity networks can facilitate suitable charging infrastructure for
customers at a reasonable cost. Energy Networks continues to engage with a range of stakeholders to understand the
" capabilities of EV products and thereby understand the potential impact on customers’ electrical needs.

Energy Networks has a significant part to play in meeting the UK Government’s carbon reduction targets. Its ultimate aim
is to empower its cities and communities to achieve the economic and health ambitions which can be realised from a low
carbon economy. In November 2021 Glasgow will play host to the next United Nations (“UN”) Climate Change Conference,
the Conference of the Parties (“COP 26”). Energy Networks is already engaged with government, Glasgow City Council and
other relevant stakeholders with regard to ensuring the required electricity capacity is delivered for all of the conference
venues and arrangements are in place to ensure the security of that supply is maintained throughout the event.

Energy Networks also recognises the opportunity COP 26 brings to raise public awareness of what needs to be doneto
deliver against the Global Climate Challenge and the part that it plays to deliver the net zero target set for the UK and
Scotland. On that basis, Energy Networks is engaged with stakeholders in Glasgow and across Scotland delivering a number
of projects particularly focused on-decarbonisation of generation, transport and heat. Itintends to use COP 26 to publicise
these initiatives, raising awareness and gaining support for continuing to deliver similar projects at greater scale'

Energy Networks has collaborated with CALA Homes to monitor new housing developments that are pioneering the use of
arange of heat pump and renewable technologies. By understanding how customers use technologies, Energy Networks
will be better informed to provide future-ready networks to engage on-how it meets the UK Government’s net zero targets
Energy Networks continues to be a key facilitator to increasing productivity by introducing new techno!ogles to support
economic growth and to increase the working age population as a result of job creation. '
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OUTLOOK FOR 2021 AND BEYOND continued

As stated previously, in 2019 the Company finalised its business plan submission for the RIO T2 period (which took effect
from April 2021), where the role of the network will continue to evolve as the demands on the network continue to change.
The generation landscape will undergo further radical change as existing nuclear and carbon intensive generation.closes
and more renewable generation connects to the system. In the same timescale, demand patterns are expected to change
as a result of the increase in electrification of transport and heat. This is expected to begin reversing the trend of reducing
demand that has been seen over the last ten years. As a result of this transition, the role of the transmission network will
become even more vital to the economy; transferring power across the country to facilitate greater interconnection and
maintaining a coordinated national system. It therefore remains important to invest in the network at the correct time to
ensure that there is no risk of stranded assets or barriers created for customers. - :

In December 2019, following a lengthy period of scrutiny and oversight, the Company submitted its final transmission
business plan (worth £1.4 billion) to Ofgem for the RIIO-T2 price control, which will run from April 2021 to March 2026. In
December 2020, Ofgem published its Final Determination for the RIIO-T2 electricity transmission price control proposing
an allowed total expenditure of £1.3 billion. However, there has been criticism from network operators in the public
domain in relation to Ofgem’s proposed cost of equity proposals for transmission companies (allowed return on equity of
4.02%). On 3 March 2021, the Company made an application to the CMA for permission to appeal against Ofgem’s RIIO-
T2 Final Determination on a number of discrete technical issues. This application was accepted by the CMA on .31 March
2021. The CMA process will therefore conclude by the end of October 2021. .

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES .

In order to deliver its strategy, ScottishPower, and therefore the Company, is required to conduct busnness in @ manner

benefitting customers through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protecting ScottishPower’s

performance and reputation by prudently managing the risks inherent in the business. To maintain this strategic direction

ScottishPower develops and implements risk management policies and procedures, and promotes a robust control

. environment at all levels of the organisation. Further details of ScottishPower’s risk management practlces can be found
in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL. :

The principal risks and uncertainties of ScottishPower relevant to the Company and those specific to the Company, that:
may impact current, future operational and financial performance and the management of these risks are described below:

FINANCIAL RISKS

RISK RESPONSE

Market Risk In addition to monitoring ongoing developments.related

Impacts arising from COVID-19 and Brexit foIIowmg
market reactions to events. These could include
increased volatility on the value of Sterling and foreign
lcurrencies and, in the longer term, there could be
positive or negative changes in the UK economy.

to COVID-19 and Brexit, ScottishPower, and so the
Company, has specific procedures in place to manage
key market risks.

Further details of the Treasury risk management policy
areincluded in the most recent Annual Report and
Accounts of SPL.

BUSINESS RISKS

RISK

RESPONSE

Reduced UK energy supplier customer demand for
|electricity driven in 2020 by the impact of COVID 19
could continue into 2021 and beyond. This could impact
Energy Networks’ revenues which are dependent on
supplier volumes.

In Energy Networks, as aIIowed revenue for each
regulatory year is fixed, any shortfall in revenues during
a period would be collected in future years in line with

the RI1O price control mechanism.

Network operators are key facilitators to governments’
net zero ambitions and the failure of Energy Networks,
and so the Company, to respond to customers’ changing
requirements through the low-carbon transition, for
example EVs, distributed generation and storage, could
result in a failure to meet these targets.

Mitigating actions include seeking whole system’
solutions by engaging with the Electricity System
Operator and other network operators, influencing

. [developments at industry forums, undertaking scenario

modelling of the impact of low-carbon technologies,
considering technical and commercial innovation
projects and engaging with key stakeholders.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

OPERATIONAL RISKS . L

RISK

RESPONSE

The impact of COVID-19 increases the risk of
ScottishPower and, where relevant, Energy Networks and
the Company not being able to meetAbperational
obligations to maintain the continuity of electricity
supply. < . a

Key areas of risk include supply chain disruption and
mobility of labour, which are impacted also by the Brexit
deal.

Business continuity plans enacted with ‘Gold Command’;
making strategic decisions and determining priorities
across the Group. This is underpinned by ‘Silver Groups’ .
specific to each business division atan operational level
to ensure continuity of decisions and communications.
This ensures corisisten_cy.in prioritising key issues, and
timely and efficient escalation of matters to the
appfopriate level of management focusing on those
issues which might impact the continuity of supply and
the other obligations of ScottishPower.

. Suppw chain monitoring groups were established écros_s

all business divisions to identify early shortages and
gaps in the supply chain in terms of products, equipment
and labour.

This has been supplemented by emergency procurement
procedures to expedite orders for replacements and
utilising the framework agreements the group already
has in place. An assessment of key equipment and
components was undertaken and additional orders
placed in order to increase stock levels prior to 31
December 2020, including any additional storage
requirements. '

Notification has been provided to subcontractors
highlighting their importance in the provision of
essential services such that appropriate levels of labour
are maintained within the UK and devolved Governments’
social distancing guidelines.

EU nationals who arrived in the UK before 31 December
2020 can continue living in the UK by registering under -
EU Settlement Scheme by 30 June 2021. During 2020, we ]

. |have been engaging with employees to ensure that they

areinformed of any actions they may need to take.
Preparation for the new points-based global immigration
system has commenced, including workshops with
external immigration advisors and training of the .
ScottishPower Human Resources team. )

‘Further details are provided in the ‘Employees’ section of

the Strategic Report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

OPERATIONAL ﬁISKS continued

RISK :

. |RESPONSE .

A major health and safety incident in the course of
operations could impact staff, contractors, communities
or the environment. - )

ScottishPower’s Health and Safety function provides
specialist services and support for the businesses in
relation to health and safety. A comprehensive
framework of health and safety policy and procedures,
alongside audit programmes, is established throughout
ScottishPower, which aims to ensure not only continuing
legal compliance but also to drive towards best practice
in all levels of health and safety operations. Further
details are provided in the ‘Employees’ section of the
Strategic Report.

Breach in cyber security and unwanted infiltration of
ScottishPower’s IT infrastructure by internal and external
parties impacting key infrastructure, networks or core
systems.

Implementation of a cyber-risk policy which provides the
framework for mitigation. Proactive approach to
identifying where ScottishPower is vulnerable and
addressing these points through technical solutions.
Educating company employees and contractors as to how
behaviour can reduce this risk. Embedding cyber security
in all projects where appropriate.

Reduced security of supply due to potential asset failures
alongside reduced generation capacity.

Reduced security of supply has the potential to disrupt
many of our customers, in both our own licence areas
and beypnq.

Risk-based assetinvestment progré mmein place,
business continuity and emergency planning well .
established including Black Start. Strategic spares policy
in place. ’

Inability to recruit or retain an appropriately skilled
workforce to deliver agreed distribution outputs.

A Strategic Workforce Planning and Implementation plan
has been putin place thatincorporates: a} retirement
profiles with demographics; b) a one-year ahead
strategic recruitment plan; and c) a ten-year strategic
recruitment plan. Identification of business critical roles
and succession planning.

REGULATORY AND POLITICAL RISKS
RISK ]

|RESPONSE

Material deterioration in the relatively stable and
predictable UK regulatory and political environment,
including any sudden changes of policy, or interventions
outside established regulatory frameworks.

Positive and trahsparent engagement.with all
appropriate stakeholders to ensure that long-term
regulatory stability and politiéal consensus is
maintained and public backing is secured for the
necessary investment in the UK energy system. Providing
stakeholders with evidence of the risks of ad hoc
intervention in markets.

) Failure to deliver the Energy Network transmission
outputs agreed with Ofgem in the price control under the
RIIO framework.

Mitigating actions include formulating.detailed
investment, resource, outage and contingency plans
supported by an extensive procurement straiegy-. Good
communication and co-ordination of activities across
the business is integral to success, complemented by a
comprehensive monitoring regime that provides early
warning of potential issues.
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS
References to “ScottishPower” apply fuIIy to the Energy Networks business, and therefore to the Company

The importance of engaging with stakeholders

As part of the Iberdrola Group, ScottishPower is developing a responsible and sustainable energy model which focuses on
the wellbeing of people, the protection of the environment and the economic and social progress in the communities in
which it operates. ScottishPower strongly believes that effective and meamngful engagement with stakeholders, especnally
employees, is key to promoting its success and values. .

Meaningful engagement with these stakeholder groups supports the ethos of Section 172 of the Companles Act 2006
which states that directors should have regard to stakeholder interests when discharging their duty to promote, in good
* faith, the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. Details of how the Energy Networks business
division, and so the Company, engages with its stakeholders, and how these actlvmes influence the Company’s operatlons
are set out below.

Key stakeholders
ScottishPower, and therefore Energy Networks and the Company, has four key stakeholder categories: Employees
and energy customers; suppliers and contractors; government and regulators; and community and environment.

Behind these stakeholders are millions of people, and thousands of institutions, organisations and groups. All of them,
“with their decisions and opinions, influence ScottishPower, and they are also affected by ScottishPower’s activities. In
addition, these stakeholders interact with each other, creating a universe of relationships that ScottishPower needs to
-manage in order to achieve a better understanding of its operating environment and. to deliver a more sustainable
performance across its activities. :

Shareholders are also important to the Company and ScottishPower. All shareholder management activities are carried
out on ScottishPower’s behalf by its ultimate parent company, Iberdrola, which is listed on the Madrid Stock exchange.
Iberdrola is committed to dialogue, proximity and actions in favour of shareholders. Iberdrola is one of the first companies
in the world, to formalise a Shareholder Engagement Policy focusing upon two-way interaction with the shareholders in
order to forge a sense of belonging and to encourage their engagement in the corporate life of Iberdrola. Iberdrola’s
Shareholder Engagement Policy is published at https://www.iberdroIa.com/corporate-governance/corporategovernance-
system/corporate-policies/shareholder-engagement-policy.

EMPLOYEES AND CUSTOMERS

Employees :

ScottishPower employs approximately 5,600 employees, working across a range of roles. The employees make a rea!
difference in determining how successfully ScottishPower operates. The creativity, innovation and individuality of
ScottishPower’s employees enables ScottishPower to build on its future capability to operate effectively in a competitive.
market, and continue to have aspirations which are challenging and.rewarding. ScottishPower respects and recognises the
importance of individuality as part of its ongoing-commitment to promoting a culture where individuality is celebrated.

ScottishPower also understand that being a diverse organisation goes beyond having legally compliant policies and
" practices; it includes a focus on creating an innovative, mtegrated organisation where people feel valued, inspiring them
to perform at their best.

As part of ScottishPower, the Company’s engagement with its employees is driven by the decisions, policies and procedures
in place at a ScottishPower level. The directors of the Company ensure that in applying these ScottishPower decisions,
policies and procedures they are meeting their duties to the Company. '

- Details of the following areas in relation to employee engagement, wh|ch apply fuIIy to the Company, are provided in the
most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL:
e impact of COVID-19; :

"« employment regulation;

e training;

e employee feedback and consultation; -

¢ inclusion and diversity;

. reyvards and benefits;

o, employee health and wellbeing;

e  Brexit; and

¢ employee volunteering.



SP TRANSMISSION PLC
'STRATEGIC REPORT continued

ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued

Health and Safety

The Company has a clear strategy to continue to improve health and safety performance using ScottishPower health and
safety standards. A more extensive description of how ScottishPower, and therefore the Company, addresses health and
safety requirements can be found in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL.

In August 2020, Energy Networks tragically recorded a fatal accident involving a colleague who was carrying out electrical
working activity. This was the only.incident involving an electrical hazard in 2020 resulting in harm to staff, and is currently
under investigation by a legally privileged Panel of Inquiry to establish the root causes and all contributory factors. Any
potential lessons learned from this incident will be communicated to all staff internally and shared with the wider industry.

Modern Slavery Statement :

The term 'modern slavery' covers both slavery and. human trafficking. ScottishPower is committed to human and labour
rights and to eliminating modern slavery that could in'any way be connected to its business. In accordance with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015, ScottishPower produced its own Modern SIavefy Statement, which has been approved by the board of
directors of Scottish Power Limited (“the SPL Board”). This statement is published on the ScottishPower website at:
https://www.scottishpower.com/userfiles/file/SP_Modern_Slavery_Statement_2019.pdf?v=1.2. :

Customers

ScottishPower provndes energy and related services to-millions of domestlc and business customers. ScottishPower’s -
success depends on its ability to understand the needs of customers and engagement is key to success in meeting
customers’ needs in this rapidly changing environment. ScottishPower seeks feedback in several ways including forums,
market research and product testing as well as via complaints channels and surveys. Performance relating to the RIIO price
coritrols is measured and reported on a regulatory year basis (April to March of any given year).

Serving stakeholders :

Energy Networks’ stakeholder engagement strategy is a priority in all it undertakes to-do. Energy Networks understands
". that its investment programmes can at times involve and affect communities and stakeholders in many different ways,
and ensuring it has a clear understanding of this allows it to consider these wider requirements at an early stage as it
develops and delivers it projects. Each of the business’s major projects is individually assessed at an early stage by the
Community Liaison Team to gauge the potential impact of the work involved. Drawing from previous experience and local
khowledge from communities, a tailored community liaison plan is created for each project to minimise any inconvenience
or disruption on communities. Overall the Company has achieved a level of stakeholder satisfaction in transmission
measured at 8.4 out of 10 in its annual survey against a benchmark of 7.4.

Facilitating renewable generation

Connecting renewable energy to the grid is key to the decarbonisation of the energy system. Energy Networks is finding
new and innovative 'ways to connect more renewables to the system quicker. It has awarded £20 million through the
introduction of a Green Economy Fund (“GEF”) to enable uptake of low carbon technology. Energy Networks is working
with the Scottish Government and Ofgem to fund low-carbon initiatives which support local economic growth. The GEF
focuses on the communities in which the Company operates — Central and Southern Scotland. To date support has been
given to 35 of Scotland’s most innovative low-carbon transport and heating projects. These included a ground-breaking
new partnership with First Bus Greater Glasgow to bring the first large passenger electric buses to Glasgow. In Edinburgh,
a mini hydro-electric scheme on the Water of Leith at Saughton Park also received funding, as has an innovative app which .
tracks electric vehicle charging points.

Targeting reliable supply performance : :

The Company’s focus is simple - ensuring that its-network in Central and Southern Scotland contlnues to provide a safe
and secure supply for around 80% of Scotland’s population and playing a key role in the decarbonisation of the UK energy
system. Undelivered energy as a result of faults on its networks was 39 megawatt hours (“MWh”"), a reliability of 99.999%,
well below the benchmark level of 225 MWh. The Company has achieved this despite a high level of network depletion’
due to the volume of project works, through meticulous co-ordination across its portfolio and robust contingency planning. .
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued

GOVERNMENT AND REGULATORS

Governments and regulators play a central role in shaping the energy sector. ScottishPower engages with them directly
- and through trade associations, responding to issues of concern and providing expertise to support policy development.
" Through this engagement, ScottishPower aims to contribute to the delivery of a UK energy system that functions in the
interests of customers now, and in the future, including achievement of the UK and Scottish Governments’ net zero
decarbonisation targets. In the early part of the year much of ScottishPower’s engagement with government and Ofgem
was focused on the response to COVID-19, including steps to ensure that its key workers and engineers were able to
continue the vital role jn the communities it serves, and seek appropriate adjustments of regulatory obllgatlons affected
by lockdown. .

ScottishPower has continued to-engage. extensively with governments, local authorities and other stakeholders on
decarbonisation, publishing in June 2020 a report ‘Unlocking Net Zero’ setting out a ten-point plan to deliver jobs and
investment for a green recovery. In the latter part of the year much of ScottishPower’s engagement with government,
Ofgem and other stakeholders has been on the RIIO-2 network price controls, highlighting the need for appropriate levels
of ambition towards net zero, and with government on future support for renewables.

SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS :

As part of its mission for a better future, quicker, ScottishPower is always looking for new suppliers and contractors, and
for ways to improve its working relationships with existing suppliers ‘and contractors. ScottishPower has a broad .and
diverse supply chain with over 3,000 suppliers, and during 2020, was awarded contracts with a cumulative value of around
£1.8 billion. Suppliers have a key role to play in the delivery of ScottishPower projects and services that ScottishPower is
undertaking to provide a low-carbon future for the UK. ScottishPower aims to develop and maintain strong relationships
across the supply base with a focus on health and safety, quality and cost. ScottishPower expécts suppliers to operate to
a high standard including working in an ethical and sustainable manner, and has a range of policies that all suppliers must
adhere to including ScottishPower’s Code of Ethics.

Engaging proactively with the supply chain is key in ensuring positive outcomes for both ScottishPower and its suppliers,
and ScottishPower seeks to engage specifically with suppliers through a variety of methods including business update
sessions focused on the supply chain, participation at trade fairs and the ScottishPower Supplier Awards, which recognise -
excellence in the. supply chain along with giving a wide range of suppliers the opportunity to interact with both the’
procurement team and other ScomshPower employees * .

Engagement with the supply chain has been vital during the COVID-19 pandemic and. allowed the impact to be assessed
not only on the supply of goods, services and progress on works, but also how the pandemic was affecting suppliers.
ScottishPower asked for suppliers to highlight significant risks they were facing and how this would affect its supplies, and
this put them in a position to take any remedial action as required. In order to support suppllers ScottishPower collated
information on sources of government.assistance and relevant contacts, Wthh was shared within its organlsatlon toensure
this information could reach as many suppliers as possnble

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT

Being a trusted, respected and integrated part of the commumty is something ScottishPower contlnually aims for. This is
realised through- operating with integrity, transparency, and working closely within the community to build relationships.
ScottishPower aims to ensure it conducts its activities responsibly and makes a positive contribution to society.

ScottishPower is committed to decarbonisation and minimising its environmental footprint by: reducing emissions to air,
land and water, and preventing environmental harm; cutting waste and encouraging re-use and récycling; protecting
natural habitats and restoring biodiversity; minimising energy consumption and use of natural and man-made resources;
and sourcing material resources responsibly.

Further details as to how ScottishPower, and so the Company, engages with co'mmunities and manages its imbact on the
environment are provided in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL. . .
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INNOVATION . » : :
ScottishPower’s future and strategic success relies on an innovative and dynamic culture in both internal initiatives and
external collaborations. ScottishPower’s diverse range of stakeholders help it deliver irnovation activities across technical .
and commercial challenges. Collaboration features strongly in ScottishPower’s open invitation model which allows close
working relationships with academics, supply chain, public agencies and customers, amongst others.

In its contlnumg strategic partnership with the University of Strathclyde, and specifically within the Low Carbon Power and
Energy collaboration programme, ScottishPower has carried out studies in many future value areas such as; the ability of -
wind farms to support the ancillary services market, the use of data analytics to predict-health and safety trends, the use
of advanced forecasting techniques for energy markets, and.using predictive analytics to support future asset. planning in
electricity networks. . :

ScottishPower’s future innovations will benefit from rapid prototyping and testing in real world environments and to that
end, it has signed an agreement with the Halo Kilmarnock project to work together in a world-leading, ‘livihng lab’ .
development. This project plans to create a 100% renewable energy-fed community comprising more than 200 homes and
30 small businesses, a large enterprise and innovation office, and a range of low-carbon technologies throughout. This will
enable the trialling and deployment of low-carbon heating, energy storage, electrification of transportation and smart

_home products and services. This flagship project is intended to allow innovations across the Group to be tested quicker,
accelerate time to market, and to provide a conveyor belt of future innovations in the next few years.

Within Energy Networks:

.+ o 2020 saw Energy Networks build on the success of its Year of Innovation in 2019. Staff are key to this success, and an
ideas management platform has been embedded in the business to give staff direct access to solve challenges faced
by the business.

e Asthe electricity network continues to evolve, and demand for power continues to grow, the ability to actively manage-
ScottishPower’s network becomes ever more critical. Fault level management is a key part of that, which is why Energy -
Networks been working on new and innovative technology that allows it to-measure and manage fault levels in real
time. As part of trials being run, prototype monitors are instailed in substations across Chester, Warrmgton and
Liverpool, aIIowmg Energy Networks greater visibility of the entire electrical network at any given time.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Statement by the directors in performance of thelr statutory dutles in accordance with section 172 of the Companles
Act 2006 -

The Companies (Miscellaneous) Reporting Regulatlons 2018 requires the directors of SP Transmission plc to g|ve a
statement which describes how the directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) of the Companies
. Act 2006 when discharging their duty under that sectlon

The directors acknowledge and understand their dutles and responsrbllltles including that, under section 172 of the’
Companies Act 2006, a director. of a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most likely
to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members asa whole, and in doing so have regard (amongst,
other matters) to: . : .

(a) the likely consequences of any decision in the Iong term;

(b)- the interests of the Company's employees

(c) the need to foster the Company's business relationships with suppllers customers and others

(d) the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment; -

(e) the desnrablllty of thé Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of busmess conduct and

(f) the need to act falrly as between members of the Company. ‘

‘The dellvery of the strategy of ‘the SPENH Group, of which the Company is a member, requires the SPENH Group to
conduct business in a manner benefitting customers through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value

. and protecting the SPENH Group’s performance and reputation by prudently managlng risks inherent in the business. In
carrying out this strategy, the directors’ duties under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 have been considered.

The directors strongly believe that effective and meanmgful engagement with stakeholders and employees is key to

promotlng the success of the Company. Details of the key stakeholders of the Company, and how they engage with them

are as follows: .

e Customers: details of how the Company assesses broader customer service measures are explained in the
‘Customers’ sub-section of the Strategic Report, on page 10.

" o Employees: details of how ScottishPower, and so the Company, engages with its employees are set out.in in the
‘Employees’ sub-section of the Strateglc Report, on page 9. '

e Communities and the environment: details of how ScottishPower, and-so the Company, engages with communltles
are set out in the ‘Community and environment’ sub-section of the Strategic Report, on page 11.

e Suppliers and contractors: details of how ScottishPower, and so the Company, engages with its suppllers are set out
in the ‘Suppliers and contractors’ sub-section of the Strategic Report, on page 11.

e Government and regulators: details of how ScottishPower, and so the Company, -engages with governments and
regulators are set out in the ’Government and regulators’ sub-sectlon of the Strategic Report; on page 11.

In addition, a statement in relation to the Company’s mteractron with its shareholders is described in the introduction to
the ‘Engaging with stakeholders’ section of the Strategic Report on page 9.

The directors, both individually and together as the board of SP Transmission plc (”the Board"), consider.that the
decisions taken during the year ended 31 December 2020 in discharging the function of the Board were in conformance
with their duty under section 172 of the Companles Act 2006.

The Board is assisted in considering key stakeholders as part of the decision- maklng process by including stakeholder'
conslderatlons in board papers as appropriate, and board papers are carefully reviewed and considered by all directors.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Scott Mathieson' »
Director ] ’
25 May 2021
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC - .
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

"The directors present their report and audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020.
INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT o
The directors have chosen to disclose |nformat|on on the following, required by the Companles Act 2006 to be |ncluded in
the Dlrectors Report within the Strategic Report, found on pages 1 to 13: : :

e information on financial rrsk management and policies;

¢ information regarding future developments of the business; -
e information in relation to innovation activities; and

. mformatlon on employee regulations and policies. .

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND ' .
The net profit for the year amounted to £136 9 mlllron (2019 £154 1 million). A dividend of £94.0 m|II|on ‘was paid durlng
the year (2019 £85.0 million).

’ STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING
The Company is exempt under section 20A of The Companies (D|rectors Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy
and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018 from the requirements to present disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions,
energy consumption and energy efficiency action as such disclosures relating to the SPL Group, of which the Company isa
part, are presented in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL. '

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Statement regarding the corporate governance arrangements of the SPENH Group

As required by the Companies (Miscellaneous) Reporting Regulations 2018, the directors of the Company have set out as
follows a statement of the corporate governance arrangements of the Company. -

" The ultimate parent of the Company is Iberdrola, S.A., which is listed on the Madrid stock exchange. The Company, which
has as its direct parent company SPENH and is part of the’ SPENH Group, does not apply a corporate governance code on
the basis that it, as part of the SPENH Group, has adopted the rules and principles of the SPENH Group as they have been
set by the board of directors of SPENH (the “SPENH Board”), in accordance with its terms of reference and the Policy for
the Definition and Coordination of the Iberdrola Group and Foundations of Corporate Organisation (the “Group
Governance Framework”), all of which are based on widely recognised good governance recommendations (the “SPENH
Group corporate governance system”). Those rules and principles of the SPENH Group corporate governance system that
applied to the Company as part of the SPENH Group during 2020 are set out as follows:

The terms of reference of the SPENH Board are published on www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ‘Corporate Governance’.

The Group Governance Framework is published on the SPL Corporatewebsite under ‘Corporate Governance’/ ‘Governance
- and Sustainability System’/’Corporate Governance'.

- Corporate governance system : :
The Company is governed by the Board, which consists of four directors who bring a broad range of skills and expenence
to the Company The Board is regulated in accordance with the Company s Articles of Association.

In dlscharglng its responsibilities and in the exercise of its decmon -making powers, and in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Board has, in accordance with the Group Governance Framework, adhered to the SPENH Group .
corporate governance system which applies to the Company as part of the SPENH Group. The SPENH. Group corporate
governance system includes the internal corporate rules (including the Purpose and Values of the Iberdrola Group, the
Code of Ethics, corporate policies and other internal codes and procedures) that make up the corporate governance system
of ScottishPower and, ultimately, of the Iberdrola Group ‘

- Board composmon :
The directors who held office durmg the year were as follows:

Frank Mitchell

Scott Mathieson :
Wendy Barnes (resigned 6 May 2020)
Alison McGregor ' S

Professor Dame Lesley Anne GIover

Pearse Murray

At the date of this report, there have been no changes to the composition of thie Board since the year end. '
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued ‘

There is no separate Appomtments Committee within the SPENH Group. Instead, appointment matters relevant to the
SPENH Group and the Company are dealt with by the Iberdrola, S.A. Appointments Committee (“IAC”). The IAC has a
function to report on the process of selection of direéctors and senior managers of the Iberdrola Group com'panies.

Purpose and values "
The structure of the Company, and the SPENH Group, is set out in the Strategic Report

During 2020, the Board has taken into accountthe Purpose and Values of the Iberdrola Group and the Code of Ethics which
are published on www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ‘Corporate Governance’. These documents define and promote the
purpose, values and culture of the Company and the SPENH Group.

Director responsibilities

- The directors are fully aware of their duties under the Companies Act 2006, including as set out in section 172 of the same.
“The primary responsibility of the Board is to supervise and make decisions as required in felation to the activities of the
Company’s business and the SPENH Group, in accordance at all times with the SPENH Group corporate governance system '

“and the provnsnons of all apphcable legislation and regulations.

The SPENH Board has the responsibility of carrying out the day-to-day management and effective administration, and for
the ordinary control of the SPENH Group overall- :

Further relevant information on the administrative, management and supervisory bodies of the boards of the Company s
parents, as they are pertinent to the SPENH Group and the Company, are described in the section below. .

Opportunity and risk :

The delivery of the SPENH Group s strategy requires the SPENH Group to conduct busmess in a manner benefitting
. customers through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protecting performance and reputation
by prudently managing the risk inherent in the business.

" To maintain this strategic direction, Energy Networks develops and implements risk management policies and procedures
and promotes a robust control environment at all levels of the organisation. Details of the applicable risk policies are
published on www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ‘Corporate Governance’.

During 2020, the governance structure was supported by the risk policies of the SPENH Group. Its business risk assessment
team and independent risk management function supported the Board in the execution of due diligence and risk
management, as descrlbed in the ‘Principal Risks and Uncertainties’ sectlon of the Strateglc Report '

Remuneration . . - _ .
The directors of the Company are subject to an annual evaluation of their performance in respect of their executive
responsibilities as part of the performance management framework which is in place throughout the SPENH Group.

There is no separate Remuneration Committee within the SPENH Group. Instead, remuneration matters relevant to the
SPENH Group and the Company are dealt with and reviewed by the Iberdrola, S.A. Remuneration Committee (“IRC"). The
-IRC has a function to report on the remuneration of directors and senior managers of the Iberdrola Group companies.

Stakeholders .
The Board fully recognises that effective and meanlngful engagement with stakeholders is key to promotlng the success of
the Company. The details of key stakeholders, why they are important to the Company, and how it engages with its
stakeholders are an integral part of its strategic goals and are described in the Strategic Report

Administrative, management and supervisory bodles
Scottish Power Limited Board

The primary responsibilities of the SPL Board, which has its own management team, include dlscloslng, |mplement|ng, and
ensuring compliance with the policies, strategies and general gwdellnes of ScottishPower overall, in accordance at all times,
with the provisions of all applicable legislation and regulations. ’ '

The SPL Board comprised the Chalrman José Ignacno Sanchez Galan and nine other directors as at 31 December 2020. José
Ignacio Sanchez Galan is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Iberdrola.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued
The directors of SPL Board were:

José Ignacio Sdnchez Galan . Chairman, non-independent, non-executive director

Lord Kerr of Kinlochard. GCMG . Vice Chairman, mdependent non- executwe director

Keith Anderson Chief Executive Officer

Wendy Jacqueline Barnes C Independent, non-executive director (appointed 12 May 2020)

. Dame Nicola Brewer ' Independent, non-executive director (resigned 16 March 2020)
Ifigo Ferndndez de Mesa Vargas Independent, non-executive director -
Suzanne Fox ' " Independent, non-executive director
Professor Sir James McDonald Independent, non-executive director
Daniel Alcain Lépez . - Non- mdependent non-executive director (appomted 26 March 2020)
Gerardo Codes Calatrava .- Non-independent, non- -executive director
Juan Carlos Rebollo Liceaga E Non-independent, non-executive director (resigned 1 March 2020)
José Sainz Armada ' Non-independent, non-executive director

Meetings of the SPL Board were held on flve occasions during the year under review. Attendance by the directors is also
shown below. : .

José Ignacro Sénchez Galan Co Attended all meetings

Lord Kerr of Kinlochard GCMG : Attended all meetings
Keith Anderson . : Attended all meetings

~ Wendy Jacqueline Barnes . Attended three meetings
Dame Nicola Brewer . . Attended one meeting
Ifiigo Fernandez de Mesa Vargas Attended all meetings -
Suzanne Fox : Attended all meetings \
Professor Sir James McDo'naId " Attended all meetings
Daniel Alcain Lépez Attended four meetings
Gerardo Codes Calatrava - Attended all meetings-
Juan Carlos Rebollo Liceaga . Attended no meetings’

* José Sainz Armada o Attended all meetings .

~ The SPL Board's terms of reference are published on the SPL Corporate website under ‘Corporate
Governance'/'Governance and Sustainatiility Systemf/’Corporate Governance’.

SPL Audit and Compllance Committee (“SP ACC”)
The SP ACC, a permanent internal body, has aninformative and consultatnve role, without executive functlons, with powers
of information, assessment and presentation of proposals to the SPL Board within its scopé of action, which is governed
by the Articles of Association of SPL and by the terms of reference of the SP ACC. -

The SP ACC's responsibilities include:
¢ monitoring the financial and non-financial reportmg processes for ScottishPower;-
s monitoring the effectlveness of ScottlshPower’s internal control, internal audit, compllance and risk management
systems;
e monitoring the statutory audit of the Annual Report and Accounts of ScottishPower; and
& monitoring the mdependence of the external audltor and recommending to the SPL Board, the appomtment or
re-appointment of the auditor and the associated terms of reference.

The SP ACC's terms of reference are published on the SPL Corporate web5|te under 'Corporate Governance’/‘Governance
- and Sustainability System’/‘Corporate Governance -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued

Membership and attendance :

The SP ACC met five times dunng the year under review. The members of the SP ACC and therr attendance record are
shown below: -

Professor Sir James McDonald, Chairman (external, independent dlrector) Attended all meetings
Dame Nicola Brewer (external, independent director) (resigned 16 March 2020) - Attended one meeting
Ifiigo Fernandez de Mesa Vargas (external, independent director) . ~ Attended all meetings
Daniel Alcain Lépez (internal, non-independent director) (appointed 7 May 2020) Attended three meetings

Juan Carlos Rebollo Liceaga (internal, non-independent director) (resigned 1 March 2020) Attended no meetings
José Sainz Armada (internal, non-independent director) -
(appointed 18 February 2020 resigned 6 May 2020) L ' _ Attended one meeting

In addition to the attendance set out above, the Scottish Power Control and Administration Dlrector, Head of Internal Audit,.
and the Compliance Director normally attend, by invitation, all meetings of the SP ACC. Other members of senior
management are also invited to attend as approprlate During the year under review, the external auditor attended (in
part) four meetings of the SP ACC. :

Matters considered by the SP ACC during 2020 : :
The issues that the SP ACC specifically addressed are detailed in its report which is publlshed on the SPL Corporate website
- under ’Corporate Governance'/’Board of Directors’.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 there were no srgnlflcant frnanual statement reportlng issues for entities within the
SPENH Group.

ScottishPower Management Committee ( ”SPMC”)
The'SPMC is a permanent internal body, without executive function, WhICh was established by the SPL Board to provide an
informative and coordinating role for the activities of ScottishPower. In accordance with the corporate governance
arrangements of ScottishPower and the separation of regulated activities, the SPMC does not exercise any executive
function as a décision-making body. The SPMC meets weekly and receives regular information on the activities of
ScottishPower in order to support the corporate functions and lines of business in understanding the local, legal, regulatory
and market specifics in the UK and in order to assist the ScottishPower Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) in the performance
of his duties. The SPMC comprises the following executives: the ScottishPower CEO; the directors of Control.and
Administration, Corporate Affairs, Human Resources, and UK Finance and Resources; the CEO of the regulated business
_division (Energy Networks); the CEO of the Renewables business division and the Global Managing Director of Renewables
Offshore; the CEO of the Retail business division; anq General Counsel and Secretary to the SPL Board. .

SPENH Board . :
- The SPENH Board is responsible for the ef'fectlve management of the Energy Networks business, in accordance with the )
strategy of the SPENH Group. The SPENH Board meeéts regularly and reviews strategy, operational performance and risk
issues on behalf of the SPENH Group. :

The SPENH Board comprised the Chairman’ Armando Martinez Martinez.and five other directors as at 31 December 2020.
The directors and their attendance at SPENH Board meetings held durlng the period under review (seven meetlngs) are
shown below: :

Armando Martlnez Martinez (Chalrman non-independent, non -executive director) Attended six meetings:

Frank Mitchell CEO Attended all meetings

Wendy Barnes (independent, non-executive director) . Attended two meetings (resigned 6 May 2020)
Professor Dame Lesley Anne Glover (independent, non-executive director) Attended all meetings

Alison McGregor (independent, non-executive director) . Attended all meetings

Antonio Espinosa de los Monteros (non-indebendent, non-executive director) Attended all meetings (resigned 30 December 2020)
- Ménica Grau Domene (non-independent, non-executive director) : . Attendéd one meeting (appointed 18 November-2020)
José 1zaguirre Nazar (non-independent, non-executive director) . Attended three meetings (resigned 10 July 2020)
Scott Mathieson {(non-independent, executive director) : Attended six meetings (resigned 17 November 2020)
Marc Rossi (non-independent, executive director) ; Attended four meetings (appointed 10 July 2020,

. ’ . . resigned 23 November 2020)
José Ignacio Sanchez Galan Garcia-Tabernero "Attended one meeting (appointed 12 Octobér 2020)

(non-independent, non-executive director)

The terms of reference of the SPENH Board are publisned on www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ‘Corporate Governance’. '
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' SP TRANSMISSION PLC -
DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued

SPENH Audit and Compliance Committee (“SPENH ACC”)

The SPENH Audit and Compliance Committee (“SPENH ACC") undertakes the role and functlon of the SP ACC as they relate
- to the regulated Energy Networks business division. The relationship between the SP ACC and the SPENH ACC is governed
"in accordance with their respective terms of reference. The SPENH ACC's terms of reference are published on

www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ’Corporate Governance’.

The SPENH ACC, a permanent internal body, has an informative and consultative role, wnthout executive functions, with
powers of information, assessment and presentation of proposals to the SPENH Board within its scope of action, WhICh is.
. governed by the Articles of Association of SPENH and by the terms of reference of the SPENH ACC.

The SPENH ACC's responsibilities include:

¢ monitoring the regulatory financial reporting process for the SPENH Group;

e monitoring the effectiveness of the SPENH Group s mternal control, internal audit, compliance and risk management
systems; and

¢ monitoring the independence of the external auditor and’ recommending to the SPENH Board the appointment or
reappointment of the auditor and the associated terms of engagement each in respect ‘of the regulatory audit.

The issues that the SPENH ACC specifically addressed are detailed in its report which is publrshed at
www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ‘Corporate Governance’ / ‘Board of Directors’.

The SPENH ACC met five times during the year under review. The members of the SPENH ACC and their attendance record
are shown below:

Wendy Barnes, Chairperson (external, independent director) (resigned 6 May 2020) Attended two meetings

Alison McGregor, Chairperson (external, independent director) Attended all meetings
(appointed Chairperson 11 May 2020) :

Professor Dame Lesley Anne Glover (external, independent director) (appomted 11 May 2020) Attended three meetings

Ménica Grau Domene (internal, non-independent director) (appointed 18 November 2020) Attended one meeting

José lzaguirre Nazar (internal, non-independent director) (resigned 10 July 2020) " Attended three meetings

Marc Rossi (internal, executive director) (appointed 10 July 2020, resigned 23 November 2020) Attended one meeting

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY i
In terms of the Company’s Articles of Association, a qualifying indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of all the
directors of the Company and of assoc1ated companles and has been in force durmg the financial year..

v

STATEMENT OF DIRECT ORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS -
The directors are responsible for preparlng the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable Iaw and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have

elected to prepare the fmancral statements in accordance with international accountmg standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Compames Act 2006 and applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
. and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing
the financial statements, the directors are required to:
e select suitable accountmg policies and then apply them con5|stently,
‘e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;
" e state whether they have been prepared in accordance with International Accountmg Standards in conformrty with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;
e assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, dlsclosmg, as appllcable matters related to going
concern; and
e usethegoing concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued -

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS continued

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain .the

Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable

them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal
" control as they determine-is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to

them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other |rregular|t|es

Under applrcable law and regulations, the directors are also responsrble for preparing a Strateglc Report, Directors’
‘Report, and Corporate Governance Statement that complies.with that law and those regulatlons

The directors are responsnble for the maintenance. and integrity of the corporate and fmancnal mformatnon relating to the
Company which is included on the ScottishPower website. Legislation -in the UK governing the preparat|on and
dissemination of the financial statements differs from.legislation in other jurisdictions.

Disclosure of mformatlon to auditor
Each of the directors in office as at the date of thls Annual Report and Accounts conflrms that:
* o sofarasheorsheis aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and
- ® he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself
- aware of any relevant audit |nformat|on and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provusmns of Section 418 of the Companies
Act2006 _ . : B

AUDITOR
KPMG LLP was re- appomted as the audntor of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Scott Mathieson
Director .
25 May 2021
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"INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SP TRANSMISSION PLC

1 Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of SP Transmission plc (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2020
which comprise the balance sheet, income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes ‘in
equity, cash flow statement, and the related notes, including the accounting policies in Note 2.

In.our opinion the financial statements:
* give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affalrs as at 31 December 2020 and of the its profit for the year
_ then ended;
+ have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
" European Union; and
¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audlting (UK) (“1SAs (UK)"”) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities are described below. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and approprlate '
basis for our opinion. Our audlt opinion is consistent with our report to the Audit Committee.

We were first.appointed as audltor by the directors on 11 January 2018. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is
for the four financial years ended 31 December 2020. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and we remain
independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to
listed public interest entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided.

2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters, that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether ornot due to fraud)
identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in
the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters (unchanged from
2019), in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as
required for public interest entities, our results from those procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results
- are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Capital expenditure
(£176.1 million; 2019 £185.4 million)

Refer to page 31 (accountlng policy) and pages 37 and 38 (financial disclosures).

The risk — Accountlng Treatment - The Company continues to undertake major capital prOJects, including significant
enhancements to the transmission networks. The determination of project costs as capjtal or operating expenditure is
inherently judgemental as there is a need to distinguish between enhancement and maintenance works. Costs capitalised
include an allocation of overhead costs, relating to the proportion of time spent by support function staff, which is also
inherently judgemental. Property, plant and equipment (including those assets in the ‘course of construction) is
quantitatively'the most significant amount on the Company’s balance sheet and is the most significant area of audit effort.

Our response - Our procedures included:

Control design and observation: Evaluating the design and operatlng effectiveness of a selection of the Company’s controls
over the capital expenditure process mcludlng the approval of the capital expenditure. Tests of effectiveness were
performed by re-performing a sample selected on the basis of the frequency of control operation and were designed to
verify that appropriate procedures were followed in each instance. Testing was also performed to ensure that the
automated system control used to calculate overheads allocated to projects was operating effectively. :

Test of details: A sample of external costs for projects were agreed to purchase invoices and reviewed to ensure that these

had been capitalised in line with applicable accounting standards as well as the company’s capitalisation policy rather than

being classified as maintenance works incurred as part of the company’s operating expenditure. We identified and -

assessed the impact of in-year changes to capitalisation rates for all existing projects, as once set they are typically

unichanged from period to period. Overhead costs allocated to projects were agreed to the overhead allocation model on

a sample basis. We critically assessed the proportion of overhead costs which are capitalised based on corroborated.
" enquiry and our sector knowledge.

Our results - We found the accounting treatment for capital expenditure to be acceptable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SP TRANSMISSION PLC continued

3 Our application of materiality and an overvievﬁ of the scope of our audit
Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at £15.0 million (2019 £15.0 million), determlned with reference
to a benchmark of total assets, of which it represents 0.47% (2019 0.49%).

In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual account balances and disclosures were performed to a
lower threshold, performance materiality, so as to reduce to an acceptable level the risk that individually immaterial
misstatements in individual account balances add up to a material amount across the financial statements as a whole.:
Performance materiality was set at 75% (2019 75%) of materiality for the financial statements as a whole, which equates
to £11,250,000 (2019 £11,250,000). We applied this percentage in our determination of performance materiality because
we did not identify any factors indicating an elevated level of risk. )

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected |dent|f|ed misstatements exceeding
£0.75 million (2019 £0.75 million), in addition to other |dent|f|ed misstatements that warranted-reporting on qualltatlve
grounds. )

Our audit of the company was undertaken to the materiality level specrfled above and was performed by a single audit
team. :

4 Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not mtend to liquidate the

" Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial position'means that this is

realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its

ability to continue as a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements

(“the going concern period™). .

* We used our knowledge of the Company; its industry, and the general économic-environment to identify-the inherent risks
to its business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue

- operations over the going concern period. The risk that we considered most likely to adversely affect the Company’s
available financial resources over this period was the impact of a reduction in energy volumes which would lead to reduced
revenue in the period. It is important to note however that any such reductions in volumes would only create ashort-term
cash flow impact as under the Company’s regulatory mechanism, the shortfall would be recoverable through aliowable
revenues in future periods.
We considered whether these risks couId plausibly affect the liquidity in the going concern period by assessmg the
Directors’ sensitivities over the level of available financial resources indicated by the Company’s financial forecasts taking
account of severe, but plausible adverse effects that could arise from these risks individually and collectively.

Our procedures also included critically assessing assumptions in the Directors’ initial downside scenarios relevant to

liquidity, in particular in relation to the impact of an increase in customer debt due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic

compared to recent past experience. -Furthermore, we assessed the ability and intent of the parent company to continue

to support the company should any such support be required. _

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in Note 1 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate

description of the Directors’ assessment of going concern, including the identified risks and dependencies.

Our conclusions based on this work: .

¢ we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate; .

*  we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertalnty related to -
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern for the going concern period; and '

¢. we found the going concern disclosure in Note 1 to be acceptable.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subséquent events may result in outcomes that are

inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee

that the Company will continue in operation.

5 ' Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (”fraud risks”) we assessed events or condmons that could indicate
an incentive or.pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures
included:
e  Enquiring of directors and internal audit and inspection of policy. documentation as to the Company’s high-level
* policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal audit function, and the Company’s channel
for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .
TO THE MEMBERS OF SP TRANSMISSION PLC continued

e . Enquiring of directors and internal audit and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company’s high-level
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal audit function, and the Company’s channel
.for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.
e  Reading Board/Audit Committee/Group Disclosure Committee minutes.
s Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud '
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking mto account possible pressures to meet. profit targets/ recent revisions to

guidance/ our overall knowledge of the contro!l environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management-
override of controls, in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries

and the risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related

to revenue recognition because the Company’s revenue consists entirely of routme non- complex transactions which are

subject to systematic processing and do not require significant judgements.

* We did not identify any additional fraud risks. ’

We performed procedures including identifying journal entries and other ad}ustments to test based on risk criteria and

comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included those posted by senior finance

management and those posted to unusual accounts.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non- compllance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial

statements from our general commercial and sector experience, through discussion with the directors and other

. management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company’s regulatory and legal
correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding

compliance with laws and regulations. :

As the Company is regulated, our assessment of risks involved galmng an understanding of the control envnronment

including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory requirements.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit. ' '

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting législation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation legislation and
we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial
statement items. . .
Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines
or litigation or the loss of the Company’s license to operate. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have
such an effect: health and safety, anti-bribery, employment law, environmental protection legislation and Ofgem
regulations, recognising the regulated nature of the Company’s activities. Auditing standards limit the required audit
procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management
and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not
disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

For the matters related to the Ofgem investigation into the Company’s compliance with its obligations relating to the
Western Link High Voltage Direct Current project discussed on page 2, we assessed disclosures against our understanding
~ from relevant correspondence and concluded that this was appropriate.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance
with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events
and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing
standards would identify it. ‘ ' .

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed
to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected .
to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .
‘'TO THE MEMBERS OF SP TRANSMISSION PLC continued

6 We have nothmg to report on the other information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the fmancnal
* statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other_ information and, accordingly, we do not

express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements
audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit
knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other information.

Strategic report and directors’ report

Based solely on our' work on the other information:

» . 'we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the dlrectors report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is con5|stent with the financial statements;
and :

* in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

7 We have nothing to report on the other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: '

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountlng records and returns or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

-We have nothmg to report in these respects

8 Respectlve responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities :

As explained more fully in their statement set out on pages 18 and 19 the Dlrectors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, dnsclosmg, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. '

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whethér due to fraud or other irregularities (see below), or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud,
other irregularities or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Afuller descripﬁon of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.’

9 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities .

This report is made solely to the’Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. .

Philip Charles (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behaif of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
319 St. Vincent Street
Glasgow
G2 5AS
26 May 2021
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC
BALANCE SHEET
at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Notes ) fm . fm
ASSETS ' ‘
NON-CURRENT ASSETS . : . , .
Property, plant and equment . ' . ‘ : ' -, 3,125.4 * 3,035.9
" Property, plant and equipment in use - ‘ 3 2,8325 . 2,659.4 -
Property, plant and equipment in the course of constructlon , - T 292.9. . 3765
Right-of-use assets ) . . 4 11.7 - 10.8
Financial assets . SR ' : - -
Investment in joint venture < . 5 - -
NON-CURRENT ASSETS . . ' ' 3,137.1 3,046.7
CURRENT ASSETS : ' ‘ .
Inventories : ' : .8 003 . 0.3
- Trade and other receivables ' i IR - 29.9 16.1 .-
Cash ' _ ) _ ‘ 8 6.3 11.9
‘CURRENT ASSETS . . 36.5 28.3
TOTAL ASSETS I "~ 3,173.6 3,075.0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY ' : . R _
- Of shareholders of the' parent . . ' 1,204.9 . 1,162.0
" Share capital ) ' . 9,10 385.0 385.0
Retained earnings , : - 10 '~ 819.9 777.0
TOTAL EQUITY - : B . 1,204.9 1,162.0
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES . ’ ’ .
Deferred income . . . ' 1 152.6 131.8
" Provisions - I ' : 1 30.5. 25.4
Bank borrowings and other f‘nancual liabilities - - 1,188.2 - 1,266.9
Loans and other borrowings 13 1,188.2 1,266.9
Lease liabilities . o : 4 11.2 - 10.1
Trade and other payables . ’ . 14 . 0.3 0.3
Deferred tax liabilities .- : * ‘ 15 201.2 172.7
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ) - ) _1,584.0 ' 1,607.2
CURRENT LIABILITIES . B ; . S
Bank borrowings and other financial liabilities © 12037 . 926
' Loans and other borrowmgs , ’ ' 13 203.7 " 92,6
Lease liabilities o : - ’ 4 ' - 1.0 0.9
- Trade and other payables ) : ' 14 175.4 ~194.7
Current tax liabilities ' B : - 4.6 : 17.6
. CURRENT LIABILITIES . E ' 384.7 305.8
TOTAL LIABILITIES - ' : ) 1,968.7 1,913.0
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ) ) 3,173.6 3,075l0

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf on 25 May 2021:

. Scott Mathieson .

Director .

- The accompanying Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of the balance sheet at 31 December 2020.
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_ SP TRANSMISSION PLC
INCOME STATEMENT,
“for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 '2019
" Notes £m £m
Revenue 16- 401.3 400.2
.GROSS MARGIN 401.3 400.2
NET OPERATING EXPENSES (48.5) (55.9)
* Net personnel expenses 17 (5.3 (6.2)
Staff costs 17 (28.1) (27.1)
Capitalised staff costs 17 22.8 20.9
Net external expenses ) (43.2) {49.7)
External services (49.6) (52.5)
Other operating income ) - 6.4 28 |
Taxes other than income tax 18 (36.1) (35.9)
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT ) 316.7 308.4
Depreciation and amortisation charge, allowances and provisions 19 (87.0) (83.3)
O'PERA_TING PROFIT : ’ -229.7 225.1
Gains on disposal of non-current assets 0.6 -
Financeincome 20 01 0.1
Finance costs 21 (34.7) (34.9)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX . 195.7 | " 1903
Income tax . 22 (58.8) (36.2)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 136.9 - 154.1

" Net profit for both years is wholly attributable to the equity holder of SP Transmission plc.

All results relate to continuing operations.

‘The accompanying Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020

2019

' Note . £m £m
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR v 136.9 154.1
OTHER COMPREHEN'SIVE INCOME . .
ltems that will not be reclassified to the income statement:
Cash flow hedges: Co '
' Changein the value of cash flow hedges ’ 10 - (0.1)
Tax relating to cash flow hedges s ' 10 - -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ) B - ] (0.1) -
‘TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 136.9 154.0
Total comprehensive income for both years is wholly attributable to the equity holder of SP Transmission plc.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2020 ‘
Share . Hédge Retained
capital reserve earnings "Total
: : £m £m ' £m £m
Atl Janua ry 2019 : . \ 385.0 ° 0.1 707.8 1,093.0
Total comprehensnve income for the year - - (0.1) 1541 1540
Dividends : : f e (85.0) (85.0)
At 1 January 2020 - : B . 385.0 - "777.0 1,162.0
Total comprehensive income for the year‘ ’ ‘ - - 136.9 136.9
. Dividends . : - - (94.0) (94.0).
At 31 December 2020 . 385.0 - 819.9 £ 1,204.9

~ The accompanying Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of the staterment of comprehensnve income and the statement of

changes in equnty for the year ended 31 December 2020
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R SP TRANSMISSION PLC.
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 + 2019
. £m fm -
Cash flows from operatlng actlvmes
Profit before tax ’ 195.7 190.3
Adjustments for: . .
Depreciation, amortisation and impairmenf 86.6 ) 83.3_
‘" Changein provisions ' - (0.1)
_Transfer of assets from customers . (35) . (3.5)
Financeincomeand costs . 346 '34.8
Net gains on dlsposaI/wrlte-off of non- current assets (0.3) -
Changes in working capital: ) o
. Changeintrade and other receivables . 55 (0.7)
Changein inventories’ (0.1) -
Changein trade and other payables {6.3) (0.1)
Provisions paid ~ - (0.2)
Assets received from cdstom'ers 245 129
Income taxes paid {43.3) (22.8)
Net cash flows from operating activities {i) . 2934 2939
Cash flows from investing activities ’
‘Investments in property, plant and equipment (183.3) (202.8)
Proceeds from dlsposal of property, plant and equnpment 0.6 -
Net cash flows from investing activities (i) . (182.7) (202.8) °
: Cash flows from flnancmg activities ' -
' Net decrease in amounts due to/from lberdrola Group compames current Joans ) (112.2) (321.2).
Increasein amounts dueto Iberdrola Group companies - non-current loans payable 125.0 : -
Cash inflows from borrowmgs - 346.6
Dividends paid to the Company s equity holder (94.0) (85.0)
Interest paid (34.1) (37.7)
{nterest paid on lease liabilities ) (0.3) " E
Payments of lease liabilities < (0.7) (0.8)
Net cash flows from financing activities (iii) ) {116.3) (98.1)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (i)+(ii)+(iii) (5.6) (7.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 119 18.9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6.3 11.9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year comprises:
Cash ' ' 6.3 119
Cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents 6.3 11.9

-
-,

The accompan&ing Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
31 December 2020

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

A COMPANY INFORMATION

. SP Transmission plc, registered company number SC189126 is'a private company limited by" shares |ncorporated in
‘Scotland and its registered address is 320 St Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland G2 5AD. :

B BASIS OF PREPARATION

" B1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS
~ The Company is required by law to prepare accounts for the Company and to'deliver them to the Reg|strar of Companies.

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS")
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union (refer to Note 1C1 below). The
accounts are prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2. Monetary amounts are presented in
pounds Sterling and rounded to the nearest hundred thousand unless otherwise indicated. The accounts are prepared on
the hlstorlcal cost basis.

The accounts contain information about SP Transmission plc as an individual company and do not contain consolidated
financial information as an investor in a joint venture. The Company is exempt under Section 400 of the Companies Act
2006 from the requirements to prepare consolidated accounts as it.and its joint venture are included by full consolidation
in the consolidated accounts of its ultimate parent, Iberdrola, S.A., a company mcorporated in Spain.

The Company has one operatmg segment for management reporting purposes-which operates in a single geographlcal
area and reports revenues from a single activity. .

@

B2 GOING CONCERN . . '
The Company’s business activitiés, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position, are set
out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 13. .

The Company balance sheet presents net current Irabllrtles of £348.2 million as at 31 December 2020. The fmanc1al
statements have been prepared on a.going concern basis which the directors consider to be appropriate for the foIIowmg

_ reasons.
. The Company is a significant component of the ScottishPower Group which is a significant component of Iberdrola one of

the world's largest integrated utilities groups. The Company patticipates in a UK treasury function operated by the
Company’s intermediate parent company, Scottish Power Limited. The UK treasury function works closely with Iberdrola
to manage the Company's funding requirements through the global treasury function. Scottish. Power UK plc (“SPUK”), an .
immediate subsidiary of Scottish Power Limited, has indicated its intention to provide the Company with the funding it
requires to meet its liabilities as they fall due, through the UK treasury function and utilising its committed facilities with
Scottish Power Limited, for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements (“the
going concern period”). As with any company placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors
acknowledge that there can be no certainty that this. support will continue-although, at the date of approval of these
financial statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so.

Throughout the year, and up to the date of signing, the.economic environment has been affected by the global COVID-19
pandemic, however, due to the nature of the Company’s core activities, the direct effects on cash flows are expected to
be limited.

For the purposes of the directors’ assessment of the Company’s going concern position, and to Satisfy them of the
Company’s ability to pay its liabilities as they fall due throughout the going concern period, the directors have prepared a
company cash flow forecast for the period to 31 December 2022 which indicates that, after taklng account of severe but
plausible downsides including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company’s existing resources and facilities and
the support noted above from SPUK are sufficient to enable it to trade and pay its liabilities as they fall due for the forecast

penod and hence for the going concern period. : ‘

Consequently, the directors are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as
they fall due for the period to31 December 2022 and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a gomg concern
basis. . N
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_SP TRANSMISSION PLC
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2020

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

C ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

C1 IMPACT OF BREXIT l .

After the end of the Brexit transition period. (31 December 2020) the UK ceased to be subject to EU law. Under the
European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018, all existing IFRSs adopted by the EU at that time have been ‘frozen’ into UK law
thus were considered as in force in the UK at the end of the transition period. Adoptions, interpretations and amendments
of IFRS adopted by the EU after the end of the transition period will no longer apply in the UK. For subsequent financial
years, companies must use UK- -adopted IFRS. At the end of the transition period, those standards will be identical to the
" EU-adopted IFRS in force on that date, but subsequently the UK has established its own endorsement process to adopt UK-
adopted IFRS, interpretations and amendments of IFRS. For the year ended 31 December 2020, UK companies therefore
have the option to use any standards which have been adopted for use within the UK in addition to the frozen EU-adopted
IFRS. ‘ :

In previous years, the accounts have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as.adopted by the EU at the date of approval
of the accounts and which were mandatory for each financial year. In line with the above, the accounts for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been prepared in accordance with the,‘frozen’ IFRS as adopted by the EU in accordance with the
International Accounting: Standards and European Public Limited-Liability Company (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit)
Regulations 2019. The accounts for financial year beginning 1 January 2021, will be prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the UK.

The changes in the way that IFRS are described as a result of the UK’s exit frem the EU, including the move to UK-adopted
IFRS for accounting periods starting on or after 1 January 2021, do not represent a change in the basis of preparation which
would necessitate a prior year restatement.

c2 IMPACT OF NEW IFRS - : -

As notéd above, these Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the frozen IFRS as adopted by the EU. In-preparing
these ‘Accounts, the Company has applied all relevant IASs, FRSs and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee interpretations (“IFRICs”) (collectively referred to as “IFRS”) that have been adopted by the EU/UK as of the
date of approval of these Accounts and that are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has applied the following amendments for the flrst time:

- Standard : Note
« Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards s : ) (a)
* Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations: Definition of a Business' ’ ) ' (a)

« Amendments to |AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements'-and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes (a)

in Accounting Estimates and Errors': 'Definition of Material’ . )

* « Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’; I1AS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and (a)
Measurement’; and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures': 'Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

(3a) The application of these pronouncements has not had a material impact on the Company’s accounting pblicies, financial position or performance.

The following new standards and arhendments to standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) but have an effective date after the date of these financial statements or have not been endorsed by the
EU/UK, and thus have not yet been |mplemented by the Cempany:
IASB effective - :
date (for periods Planned date of
) . corhmencing application by
Standard L ] Notes on or after) the Company

. Amendments to IFRS-16 'Leases': 'Covid-19- Related Rent Concessions' (b),(c) 1June2020 1 January 2021
and 'Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021’ ) : ' .
« Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’; 1AS 39 ‘Financial T (d) 1lJanuary 2021 1 January 2021

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’; IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’; IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'; and IFRS 16
'Leases': 'Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 . }
* Amendments to IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts': 'Extension of the . (c) 1January 2021 1 January2021
Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9’
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2020

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION contlnued
.C: ACCOUNTING STANDARDS contlnued
C2 IMPACT OF NEW IFRS continued

IASB effective
date {for periods
commencing

Planned date of
" application by

Standard continued ’ Notes on or after) .the Company

* Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’, IAS 16 Property, (c).(e) 1January 2022 1 January 2022
Plant and Equipment' and IAS 37 Prowsnons, Contingent Liabilities ' A

- and Contingent Assets' ‘ ' . ‘ ,

. Annual Improvements to IFRS Standa rds 2018-2020 Cycle (c)le) 1January 2022 1 January 2022

« Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’: (c),(e) 1January 2023 1 January 2023
‘Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’ and 'Deferral ' : '
of Effective Date' . .

* IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ including 'Amendments to-IFRS 17" (c),(e) 1January 2023 1 January 2023

e Amendments to I1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements ’ (c),(e) 1 January 2023 1 January 2023
Disclosure of Accounting Policies' . ‘ -

* Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting ' Ac),(e) 1January 2023 1 January 2023
Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates’ s ’ _ ‘

 IFRS 14 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ {c),(e),(f) 1 January 2016 To be decided

« Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and
IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’: ‘Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture’

(c).(e).(e)

Deferred
indefinitely

To be decided

(b)

()
{d)

(e)
N

The first:noted amendment to IFRS 16, makes available a practical expedient around rent concessions affecting payments originally due on or before
June2021. The further amendment extends the time that practical expedient is available. The latteramendment is effective for periods commencing
on or after 1 April 2021.

" The future application of this pronouncement is not expected to have a material lmpact on the Company's accounting policies, financial position or

performance.
Following the decision taken by global regulators to reform benchmark rates and replace Inter-bank Offerecl Rates (“IBORs") the IASS Iaunched a
two-phase process to address the expected financial reporting implications. Phase 1 of the IBOR reform was effective for the Company from 1
January 2020 but has not had a material impact on the Company’s accounting policies, financial position or ‘performance. Phase 2 of this -
reform will be effective for the Company as from 1 January 2021., The Company holds debt referencing LIBOR (London Inter-Bank Offer Rate). Refer
to Note 8(b). Following implementation. of these amendments, these instruments will need to be revised to reference an alternative benchmark
rate. The modification accounting reliefs provided under the amendments to IFRS 9 are expected to be applicable for these changes, as are the
a_dd_itional disclosure requirements contained in the amendments to IFRS 7.

This pronouncement had not been endorsed by the EU as at 31 December 2020 and has not yet been endorsed by the UK.

The endorsement process of this interim standard has not been launched. On 29 January 2021, the IASB lssued an exposure draft for 3 proposed

replacement standard for this interim standard.

() The IASB set the effective date of this pronouncement as for pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2016. However in December 2015, the IASB

postponed the effective date indefinitely pending the outcome of its-research project on the equity method:of accounting. The EU endorsement '
- process for this pronouncement has been postponed awaiting a revised exposure draft from the IASB. The effective date will be amended in due
course.
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. SP TRANSMISSION PLC
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31 Dec_ember 2020

- 2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES Co '
In determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is often required in respect of items which have a significant

_effect on the reported amounts of assets, liabilities income and expenses recognised in the financial statements. Other
than those involving estimates, the Company has no such judgements. At 31 December 2020, assumptions made about
the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty which have significant risk of resulting in a mateérial
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the next financial year are detailed below:

. Decomm|55|on|ng costs — Note 2H and Note 12.

The prlnCIpaI accountmg pohues applied in preparing the Company’s accounts are set out below

A REVENUE

B PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
C LEASED ASSETS

D IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASED ASSETS
E  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

F. INVENTORIES _

G - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

H DECOMMISSIONING COSTS

I TAXATION.

J CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

A REVENUE -
The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consuderatuon to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

(a) Electricity, transmlsswn

‘The Company provides the service of maklng its transmnssnon network avallable to the Great Britain system operator. This
performance obligation is satisfied over time as the customer snmultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the
Company’s performance as it makes the transmission network- available. The customer benefits from the Company’s
service evenly throughout the year, therefore, time is used to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation, Revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis throughout the year based on the amount.of
allowed revenue for the year set by the regulatory price control. Invoices are typically raised and settled on a monthly basis
and, therefore, there are no.related IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (“IFRS 15”) receivables, contract
assets or contract liabilities at thé end of the year. . .

(b) Transfers of assets from customers
Pursuant to the applicable industry regulations, the Company occasionally receives contrlbutlons from its customers for -
the construction of grid connection facilities, or is assigned assets used to connect those customers to a network. Both the -
cash and the fair value of the facilities received are credited to Deferred income in the balance sheet (this is a contract
liability). Revenue is subsequently recognised in line with the period over which the facilities are depreciated. As the cash
contributions received from customers relate to underlymg business activities, they are. recorded as cash flows from -
operatmg activities'in the cash flow statement. '

B PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT :

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost and depreuated on a straight-line basis over the estimated operational
lives of the assets. Property, plant and equipment includes capitalised employee costs, interest, lease depreciation and
other directly attributable costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acqwsmon construction or production of
major qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarllyAtake a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use, are added to the cost of those -assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use.
Reviews of the estlmated remaining lives and-residual values of property, plant and equipment are undertaken annually.
'Resudual values are assessed based on prices prevalllng at each balance sheet date.

Land is not deprecnated. The main depreciation perlods used by the Company are set out below.

Years
Transmission facilities - 40
Other items of property, plant and equipment S - 50
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC .
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2020 '

2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

- C LEASED ASSETS

" Acontract is, or contains a Iease if, atits |ncept|on the contract conveys the right to control the use of an |dent|f|ed asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an .
identified asset, the Company uses the deflnmon of a lease in IFRS 16 ‘Leases". :

An identified asset will be specified explicitly or implicitly in the contract, 'and will be physically distinct or represent
. substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has asubstantive substitution right, the asset s
not identified. : :

A contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset if the customer has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use and the customer has'the right to' direct
the use of the asset. The customer has this right when they have the decision-making rights that are most relevant to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. Where this is predetermined, the customer has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either they have the right to operate the asset or they deS|gned the assetin a way that predetermines
how and for what purposes it will be used.

. The Company has elected not to- separate non-lease components and thus accounts for the lease and non- Iease :
components in a contract as a single lease component.

. C1 LESSEE
As a lessee, the Company recognises a right- of-use asset at the lease commencement date measured |n|t|aIIy at cost. This
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlymg asset, or restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any leasé incentives recelved

The rlght -of-use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis from the commencement date over the shorter
“of the useful life of the underlying asset and the lease term. The right-of-use asset is reduced by any impairment lossés

and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The Company presents right-of-use assets within Non-
"current assets in the balance sheet and the depreciation charge is recorded within Depreciation, amortisation and
‘provisions in the income statement.

The lease hablllty recognised at the commencement date is measured initially at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. As the rates implicit in the leases cannot be readily determined, the liabilities are discounted
" using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. This rate béing the currency-specific interest rate that would bé incurred -
on a loan, with similar terms, to purchase a similar asset. The incremental borrowing rates will be updated annually and
applied to leases commencing in the subsequent year. Therefore, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease |Iabl|lty comprise fixed"
payments (including in-substance fixed payments); variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate initially
measured using the index or rate at the commencement date; lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
Company is reasonably. certain to exercise an extension option; and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the
. Company is reasonably certaln not to do so. :

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in the’ future lease payments arlsmg from a change in the index or
rate, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

This.change in the lease liability will result in a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the rlght -of-use asset,

or i profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is zero.

The Company presents lease liabilities separately in the balance sheet; the discount on the I|ab|||t|es unwinds over the
term of the lease and is charged to Flnance costs in the income statement.

The Compan‘y has elected not to recognise rlght -of-use assets and lease liabilities for certain short-term leases that have a
lease term of twelve months or less, and leases of intangible assets. The Company recognises any lease payments
associated with such leases as an expense on a stralght line basis over the lease term.
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2020 : .-

2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

C  LEASED ASSETS continued .
C2 LESSOR ' :
When the Company acts -as a lessor, it'determines at lnceptlon ‘whether each Iease is a finance or operating lease. The
Company classifies leases as finance leases whenever the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. -

"When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interest in the head lease and the sub-lease separately;
classifying the sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not the underlying asset. If a
head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it cIa55|f|es the sub-
lease as an operating lease.

The Company recognises operating Ieases payments received as income on a stra|ght-llne basis over the lease term as part
of Other operating income. :

D IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASED ASSETS' .
At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment and leased
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax ‘
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, the risks spec1f|c to the asset and lease ,
iiabilities under IFRS 16.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Where the
asset does-not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Any impairment is recognised in the income statement in
the period in which it is identified. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for '
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been recognised, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

_E  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a fmancnal asset of one entity and a flnanmal liability or equity-
instrument of another entity..

El FINANCIAL ASSETS

E1.1 RECOGNITION AND INITIAL MEASUREMENT : :

Financial assets are classified as measured at.amortised cost both at |n|t|al recognition and subsequently. Trade receivables
without a significant financing component, and for which the Company has applied the simplified Expected Credlt Loss
(“ECL™) model are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 (refer to Note-8). B

E1.2 CLASSIFICATION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

(a) Classification

Financial assets-are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business
model for managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified ‘on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in the business model. Such reclassuflcatlons are expected to be infrequent;
no other reclassifications are permitted. '

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages them in order to generate

cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,

selling the financial assets, or both. The business model of the Company does not depend on the intentions of

" management for an individual instrument. Therefore, it is not an instrument-by- instrument classification approach
and should be determined from a higher level of aggregation. :

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the followmg conditions:

e itisheld within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash rows and

e its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the ‘SPPI’ test.
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SP TRANSMISSION PLC .
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS contjnued
- 31 December 2020

"2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

E  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS contlnued

E1 FINANCIAL ASSETS continued -

E1.2 CLASSIFICATION AND SUBSEQUENT. MEASUREMENT Cont/nued

(b) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
- Financial assets at amortised cost are.subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by net expected credit losses. Interest income and net expected credit losses are recognised in
the income statement. Any gain or loss on derecognition is-also recognised in the Company income statement.

(i) Derecognition : : .
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of SImllar financial assets) is pnmarrly :
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired.

- (c) Impairment of financial assets :

Disclosures relating to impairment of flnanual assets are provided in Note 8. The Company has adopted the simplified ECL
model for its trade receivables and the general model for all other financial assets held at amortised cost.

In applying the simplified model, loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. The Company has established a provision matrix based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for, where
- possible, forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and ecdnomic environment. :

ECLs for all other fihancial assets are recognised using the general model which works as follows:

e for credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses resulting from default events that are considered possible within the'next twelve months (a
twelve-month ECL); and :

e for credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in -credit risk since initial recognltlon a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure irrespective of the tlmlng of -

. the default (a lifetime ECL).

As an exception to the general model, if the credit risk of a financial instrument is low at the reporting date, management
can measure impairment using a twelve-month ECL and so it does not have to assess whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred. In order for this operational simplification to apply, the financial instrumént has to meet the
following requirements:

» ithasa low risk of default;
e “the borrower is considered, in the short-term, to have a strong capacity to meet its obligations; and

¢ thelender expects, in the longer term, that adverse changes in economic and busmess conditions mlght but will not

necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its obligations.

The Company considers financial assets to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is equiv'alent to the globally
understood definition of ‘investment grade’. The Company considers this to be BBB- or higher per rating agency Standard
& Poor’s. Therefore, all of the Company’s other financial assets are considered to have low credit risk at both the beginning
-and end of the reporting period. : : ’

(i) Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs resulting from all possnble default
events'over the expected life of a financial instrument. Twelve-month ECLs are the ECLs resulting from default events that .
- are possible withinthe twelve months after the reportlng date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than twelve months) . : :

. The maximum period consndered when estlmatmg ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfails (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and those the Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective
interest rate of the financial asset.
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2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

‘E FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

E1 FINANCIAL ASSETS continued

E1.2 CLASSIFICATION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT cont/nued

(c) Impairment of financial assets continued .

(ii) Credlt-lmpalred financial assets : : ¢ .

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are ‘credit- |mpa|red’ This
is the case when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred. '

(iii) Write- offs ‘
The gross carrymg amount of a fmanaal asset |s written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there isno realistic

prospect.of recovery.

E2 FINANCI_AL LIABILITIES )

E2.1 RECOGNITION AND INITIAL MEASUREMENT

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at falr value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables net of
directly attrlbutable transaction costs. \ .

£2.2 CLASSIFICATION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT :

Financial |IabI|ItIeS are classified as measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in the income statement Any gain or
loss on derecognition is also.recognised in the income statement ' : : .

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any dlscount or premium-on acquusutlon ‘and fees, or costs that are an
-integral part of the effective mterest rate The effective interest method is |nc|uded as Finance costs in the income

" statement.

(a) Derecogmtlon

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under that liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially mod|f|ed the original liability is derecognlsed and anew liability recognised.
The dlfference in their respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement

F  INVENTORIES

~ Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net reallsable value. Cost includes all d|rectly attrlbutable costs lncurred in

brmgmg the mventones to their present location and condition.

.G RETIREMENT BENEFITS

ScottishPower operates two defined benefit schemeés and one defined contribution retirement benefit scheme in the UK.
SP Transmission pic is a participating company in these group arrangements, and the contributions for the defined benefit
schemes are based on pension costs across all the participating companies. The Company is unable to identify its share of
the underlying assets and liabilities in the defined benefit schemes, as the scheme administrators do not calculate these
separately for each of the various companies participating in the'schemes and therefore treats these schemes as if they
were defined contribution schemes. The amount charged to the income statement in respect of pension costs is the
contributions payable in the year. :

H DECOMMISSIONING COSTS ’ : k ’ e

Provision is made, on a discounted basis, for the estimated decommlssmnlng costs of certain non- current assets.
" Capitalised decommissioning costs are depreciated over the useful lives of the related assets. The unwinding of the
discount is included within Finance costs. The future estimated costs are based on the value of the costs at the balance .
sheet date, uplifted for inflation to the eénd of the useful economic life of the underlying asset, then discounted.

Decommissioning costs are subject to a degree of uncertainty as they are estimated at the balance sheet date and actual
decommissioning will take place in the futlire. There is also uncertainty over when the actual decommissioning costs will .
be incurred. The key sources of estimation uncertainty relate to the estimated value of the costs at the balance sheet date
and the discount rate. Sensitivity disclosures are set out in Note 12.-
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2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES Contlnued

| TAXATION . .
Assets and liabilities for current tax are calculated usmg the tax rates that have been enactedor substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date: '

" Deferred tax is the tax.expected to be payable or recoverable on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits (temporary
differences), and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit -
will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax-is calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peridd in which the
liability is settled or the asset. reahsed based on.tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
~ date. Deferred tax is charged to the income statement, except where-it relates to items charged or credited to equity (via
-the statement of comprehensive income), in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity and is shown in the
. statement of comprehensive i income.

Tax on the profit or Ioss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to’ items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is
recognised directly.in equity or other comprehensive income. For income tax arising on dividends, the related tax is
recognised in the income statement, statement of other comprehensive |ncome, or in equity consnstently W|th the
transactions that generated the distributable’ proflts

J CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :

Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and term deposits which are readily convertible
.into a known amount of cash without significant risk of changes in value and with a maturity of less than 90 days at the
date of acquisition. In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equnvalents includes bank overdrafts repayable on demand

the next business day.
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ,
{a) Movements in property, plant and equipment -

Othéritems of

property, plant Plantin the
and equipment course of
_Transmission inuse construction
: o facilities (Note (i}) (Note (ii)) Total
Year ended 31 December 2019 £m . £m £m £m
Cost: . .
At 1 January 2019 3,117.9 104.1 366.2 .3,588.2
Additions (Notes (iii), {iv)) 25.3 : 09 159.2 185.4°
Transfers from plantin the course of construction to plantin use 148.7 . 0.2 (148.9) -
Disposals ) L - (0.1) - (0.1)
At 31 December 2019 3,291.9 105.1 376.5 13,7735
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2019 599.1 55.7 - 654.8
Depreciation for the year- 80.2 2.7 - 829
Disposals - - (0.1) - {0.1)
At 31 December 2019 6793 .. 58.3 - 737.6
Net book value: :
At 31 December 2019 2,612.6 46.8 376.5 3,035.9
Atl Jénuary 2019 2,518.8 48.4 366.2 2,933.4~
The net'book value of property plant and equipment at 31 December 2019 is analysed as follows:
Property, plant and equipmentin use . ©2,612.6 46.8 - -2,659.4
Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction - - 376.5 376.5
- 2,612.6 46.8 376.5 3,035.9 °
Otheritems of
property, plant Plant in_ the
. and equipment course of
Transmission inuse construction
. facilities’ (Note (i)’ {Note (ii)) . Total
Year ended 31 December 2020 £m £m £m _f£m
Cost: ) ' ; '
At 1 January 2020 3,291.9 105:1 376.5 3,773.5
Additions . 4.8 1.9 169.4 176.1
Transfers from plantin the course of construction to plantin use 249.1 4.0 (253.1) .-
Transfers from inventories ; .- - 041 0.1
. Disposals {4.8) (1.0) - {5.8)
At 31 December 2020 3,541.0 110.0 29279 -3,943.9
Depreciation: _— ’
‘At 1 January 2020 679.3 583 - 7376 .
Depreciation for the year 835 . 2.7 - 86.2
Disposals (4.3) (1.0) - '(5.3)
At 31 December 2020 758.5° 60.0 - 818.5
Net book value: ’
At 31 December 2020 2,7'82.5 - 50.0 292.9 3,125.4
At 1 January 2020 2,612.6 46.8 376.5 3,035.9
The net book value of property plant and equipment at 31 December 2020 is analysed as follows:
Property, plantand equipment in use 2,782.5 50.0 - 2,832.5
Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction - - 292.9 292.9
: - 2,782.5 50.0 292.9 3,125.4
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

(a) Movements in property, plant and equipment continued

(i)  The category Other items of property, plant and equipment in use principally compnses land and communications equipment.

(i)  The category Plant in the course of construction principally comprises transmission.facilities in the course of construction.

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2019, additions of £1.3 million were purchased from other Iberdrola Group companies and £31.2 million from
a joint venture, NGET/SPT Upgrades Limited.(“NGET”) as shown in Note 26. ’

{iv) Interest on the funding attributable to major capital projects was capitalised dufing the year ended 31 December 2019 at a rate of 2.8%.

(v} The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use at 31 December 2020 was £89.8 milfion (2019 £89.3 mitlion).

{vi) Included within the cost of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2020 are assets in use not subject to deprecratlon, being land of
£23.2 million (2019 £23.2 million).

(vii) Included in Transmission facilities are assets with a carrymg value of £1.3 million (2019 £1:6 million) which the Company leases to third parties via
operatlng leases. .

(b) Capital commitments . _
) - 2020

2026 and .
2021 2022 2023 2024 12025 thereafter Total
! . fm_ - . fm £m £m £m £m £m
Contracted but not provided 160.5 46.4 - 5.1 0.8 0.1 0.2 . 213.1
i ‘ 2019 . -
N . i 2025 and
2020 2021 2022 . 2023 2024 thereafter Total
. £m - £m £m £fm . ) £fm - £m £m
Contracted but not provided 86.0 15.4 1.4 - © 0.2 - - 103.0

(c) Research and’ development expenditure
The amount ‘of research and development expendlture recognlsed as an expense durlng the year was £nil (2019 £0.2
million). : :

4  LEASING _ S

'4A 'LESSEE . .
The Company leases many assets including land, vehicles and other equipment. Information about leases for which the
Companyis a lessee is presented below.

(a) Nature of leases

Land

The Company holds agreements to lease land and for the assignment of rlghts to use land, primarily relating to operational
assets, with typical lease terms running up to 40 years.

Vehicles

The Company leases veh|cles with lease terms of between four and six years, primarily being pool vehicles to mobilise (1<
operational staff and other specuahst vehicles. Certain vehicle leases are considered short-term and the Company has
elected not to recognlse right- -of-use assets and lease I|ab|I|t|es for these leases. :

Other equipment .
Plant leases for generators and temporary site security systems are considered short-term and the Company has elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

Extension options

Some land leases contain extension options exercusable by the Company at the end of the non-cancellable contract perlod

or an agreed point before that date for up to five years. Where practicable, the Company seeks to include extension options

in leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the

lessors. At lease commencement, the Company will assess whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
“options and reassesses this if there is a significant event or change in circumstances within its control.

Other information -
The Company has not committed to any Ieases that have not yet commenced. The Company has no contracts containing
residual value guarantee, no leases subject to significant restrictions or covenants and no sale and leaseback transactions. .
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4 LEASING continued
4A LESSEE continued
(b) Right-of-use assets »

" Land Vehicles Total
Year ended 31 December 2019 Note £m £m £m
Cost:. '
On transition to IFRS 16 atlJanuary 2019 8.2 0.7 89 .
Additions . 2.0 0.6 26
Adjustments for changes in liabilities (i) - 0.1 0.1
At 31 December 2019 10.2 1.4 11.6.
Depreciation:
On transition to IFRS 16 atlJanuary 2019 .- - -
Charge for the year 0.4 0.4 0.8
At 31 December 2019 0.4 0.4 0.8
Net book value: .
At 31 December 2019 9.8 1.0 10.8
On transition to IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 - 8.2 0.7 8.9

Land. Vehicles Total -

Year ended 31 December 2020 Note £m £m - £m
Cost: - )
At 1 Janua ry 2020 10.2- 14 11.6
Additions 0.9 0.4 13
“Adjustments for changes in Ilabllmes (i) 0.3 0.1 0.4 -
At.31 December 2020 11.4 1.9 ~13.3

" Depreciation:

" At1January 2020 0.4 0.4 0.8
Charge for the year 0.4 0.4 0.8
At 31 December 2020 0.8 0.8 1.6
Net book value:

At 31 December 2020 10.6 - 1.1 11.7
At 31 December 2019 9.8 ) 1.0 10.8

(i)  Adjustments for changes in liabilities are movements in the right-of-use asset resulting from remeasurement of the associated lease liability to
reflect changes to the lease payments due to any reassessment or lease'modifications. .

(i) Thereareno right-of-use assets measured at revalued amounts.

(c) Lease liabilities

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of non- derlvatwe lease liabilities, showmg the undiscounted payments to

be made after the reporting date.

2020 ) 20‘19

. £m’ £m

Less than one year 1.2 0.9

Oneto five years - 3.2 29

More than five years 14.6 14.1

- Total undiscounted lease llabllltles at 31 December 19.0 17.9
Finance cost (6.8) (6.9)

Total discounted lease liabilities 12.2 11.0

Analysis of total lease liabilities

Non-current ’ 11.2 10.1

" Current 1.0 0.9

Total 12.2 11.0

Details of the Company’s risk management strategy for liquidity risks inherent in the Company’s lease liability are described at Note 8.
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4 . LEASING continued

_ 4A  LESSEE continued h
(d) Amounts recognised in income statement -
’ , ) 2020 - 2019
* ) : ] Note : £fm - ., _£m
Interest on lease liabilities . ' - ' - (0.4) " - (0.3)
Expenses relating to short-term leases ' [0) : (1.2) (0.9}

(i) This charge relates to leases for plant and.equipment and vehicles. Future commitments relatmg to the portfolio of short-term leases aré expected
to be similar'to the expense charged in the year.

(e) Amounts recognised in the cash flow statement .
2020 ' 2019

. - : £m £m
Payments of lease liabilities . . o ©(0.7) : (0.8)
Interest paid on lease liabilities o ) . (0.3) -
Payments for short-term leases ' ' . ’ . - (1.0) (0.8)
Total cash outflow for leases . . . (20) 1{1.6)

48 LESSOR .
The Company has contracts to lease land and bu||d|ngs which have been classn‘ned as operatmg Ieases, because they doA
not transfer.substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets. These Ieases have terms of

up to two years.
Lease income recognised by the Company during 2020 was £0.2 million (2019 £0.2 million). No income relating to varlable
lease payments that do not depend on an.index or rate have been recogmsed

The following table sets out a maturlty analy5|s of lease receivables, showmg the undiscounted payments to be received

after the reporting date: .
2020 2019

£m fm
Less than one year . ) ) 0.2 0.2
One to two years ) ) . - 02 . 0.2
Total undiscounted lease payments ) 0.4 0.4

Details of the Company’s risk management strategy for addressmg and reducing the risks associated with the retained rights in the underlymg assets are
described in Note 8. )

S5 INVESTMENTS .
Shares in

- o . joint venture
. . - £
At 1 January 2019, 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 - 50
’ ' Equity interest in
Country of ordinary shares

Subsidiary . Principal actlvmes Notes - incorporation 2020 2018
NGET/SPT Upgrades Limited Operation of offshore HVDC West Coast . fak(b) . England 50% 50%
transmission link ) : and Wales :

(a) The address of the registered office of thlSjOlnt venture is 1-3 Strand, London, WC2N 5EH, England.
(b) This direct mvestment |n 100% of the ‘B’ ordlnary shares represents 50% of the Jomt venture’s total issued share capltal

6 -INVENTORIES s
2020 ) 2019

Note £m £m
Other inventories - : : (a) 03 0.3

(a) Inventories with a value of £0.2 million (2019 £0.2 million) were recognised as an expense duririg the year.
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7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES .
2020 2019

Notes "~ £m ’ £m
Current recelvabIeS' . : . v

- Receivables due from Iberdrola Group compa nies - trade . ) (a) 04 0.3
) Receivables due from Iberdrola Group companies - loans . o (b) 19.3 -

Receivables due from a joint venture - trade o : 0.2 : 0.4
Tradereceivables and accrued income ) . @ . 1.0 - 6.3

Prepayments ° ' : - : 0.1

Other tax receivables 9.0 9.0

' 29.9 - 16.1

(a) Information about the Company’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade receivables are included in Note 8.
(b} Loans receivables due from Iberdrola Group companies are repayable on demand and earn interest at Base +1%.

L
8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Carrying value of financial instruments
The table below sets out the carrymg amount and fair value of the Company s financial instruments.

2020 - 2019
’ Carrying ' Fair Carrying ) . Fair
. ) amount value " amount : value
Classificiation  Notes £m £m ’ £m £m
Financial assets ’ . ' ’ .
Receivables ) ’ Amortised cost (i) 20.9 209 @ . 7.0 - 7.0
Cash : Amortised cost Gy 6.3 ‘ 6.3 11.9 .- °.11.9
Financial liabilities S : N : .
Loans and other borrowings Amortised cost (iii) (1,391.9) (1,431.0) (1,359.5) {1,363.5)
Payables Amortised cost (i) (145.2) (145.2) (163.0) - (163.0)

The carrying amount of these financial instruments is calculated as set out in Note 2E. With the exception of Loans and other borrowings, the carrying -
value of financial mstruments is a reasonable approximation of fair value. The fair value of Loans and other borrowings is calculated as set out in footnote
(iii) below. . . »
(i)  Balances outwith the scope of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure’ (“IFRS 7”) and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (“IFRS 9”) have been excluded,
- namely prepayments, other tax receivables, payments received on account and other taxes and social security.
{ii) Asageneral rule, cash deposited with banks earns interest at rates similar to market rates on daily deposits. Cash asat 31 December 2020 comprised
deposits with banks of £6.3 million (2019'£11.9 million) in respect of ring-fenced funds received from third parties for use on specific innovation

projects and are not available to finance the Company’s day-to-day operations.
(iii) Thefair value of listed debt is calculated using the most recently traded price to the year-end date and the fair value of all other loans and borrowings
is calculated usrng a drscounted cash flow. :

(b) Financial risk management
The Company’s principal financial I|ab|I|t|es comprise loans and borfrowings and trade and other payables The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company has trade receivables and cash

that arise dlrectly from its operatlons

The Company has exposure to the foIIowmg risks arrsmg from the above financial instruments:
A Credit risk; and .
B Treasury rlsk (comprising both I|qUId|ty and market rlsk)

An extensive description of this risk management framework of ScottlshPower and therefore the Company, can be found
in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL.

)
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8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued -

(b) Financial risk management continued

A. CREDITRISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty WI|| not meet its contractual obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operatlngac‘tlwt:es (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure to the Company.

Al CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT : :

The Company is exposed to both settlement risk (defined as the risk of a counterparty falllng to pay for services which have
been delivered), as well as replacement risk (defined as the risk of incurring additional costs in order to replace a sale or
purctiase contract following a counterparty default). ' ‘

FUr_ther’ details on the credit risk managém‘ent strategy adopted for significant types of financial asset are set out below.

e Credit risk in respect of customers is mitigated by contracting with multiple counterparties and limiting exposure to
_individual counterparties to clearly defined limits based upon the risk of counterparty default.
e Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by ScottishPower’s treasury department in
accordance with Iberdrola’s cash investment procedure. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty by Corporate Risk Management.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company evaluated the concentration of risk with respect to fina_ncial assets as low,
with no material concentration of credit risk in the Company arising from one particular counterparty..

Expected credit loss assessment .
For trade receivables the Company applies the simplified approach for calculation of ECLs. For all other fmancnal assets
“measured at amortised cost the Company applies the general approach for calculation of ECLs.

A2 TRADE RECEIVABLES £1.0 million (2019 £6.3 million) -

The Company uses the simplified model to measure ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates represent a lifetime ECL
and are based on the Iberdrola Company’s historical loss experience and default rates. The impairment losses on the gross
carrying value of trade receivables at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 was less than £0.1 million at both dates.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company.

A3 RECEIVABLES DUE FROM IBERDROLA GROUP COMPANIES £19.7 million (2019 £0.3 m|II|on) . -
The loss allowance recognised in the balance sheet in both the current and prior year is less than £0.1 million as is the
movement in the ECL in the year. ‘

A4 CASH £6.3 million (2019 £11.9 million)

The Company held cash of £6.3 million (2019 £11.9 million) at 31 December 2020. The cash is held wnth banks and financial
institution counterparties, which are rated BBB- to AAA, based on Standard & Poor’s ratings. Impairment on cash has been
measured on a three month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers
that its cash has low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties. The loss allowance recognised
in the balance sheet in both the current and prior year is less than £0:1 million as is the movement inthe ECLin the year.

'A5 RECONCILIATION OF OPENING TO CLOSING LOSS ALLOWANCE
The closing loss allowances for all f‘nancnal assets measured at amortised cost is less than £0.1 million at both the current and .
prior year ends.

B. TREASURY RISK

Treasury risk is comprised of liquidity risk and market risk. ScottishPower’s cash management and short-term flnancmg
activity, and therefore that of the Company, is- mtegrated with Iberdrola’s. The Compariy produces short-term rolling cash
flow requirements and, if necessary, any required funding is obtained via ScottishPower’s credit facilities already in place.

B1 TREASURY LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT .
ScottishPower’s liquidity position and short-term financing activities, and therefore that of the Company, are integrated
and aligned with Iberdrola’s. Liquidity risk, the risk that the Company will have insufficient funds to meet its liabilities, is
managed by Iberdrola Company Treasury, who are responsible for arranging banking facilities on behalf of ScottishPower.
Scottish Power UK plc is the principal counterparty for the loan balances due by the Company.
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8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

(b) Financial risk management continued

B.  TREASURY RISK continued

B1 TREASURY LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT continued’

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 December based on
contractual undlscounted payments. - ' : ’

2020
) 2026 and .

. 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 thereafter Total

Cash outflows . Note . £m £m . £m £fm’ T £m . £fm £m

Loans and other borrowings 2347 77.3 227.8 195 179.6 854.4 1,593.3

_Payables . , a) 1310 0.2 0.1 - - - 1313

- A ) 365.7 775 2279 19.5 179.6 854.4 1,724.6

2019 -
: . "2025 and

- . ' : 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 thereafter = Total
Cash outflows ‘ Note . fm £m- . £m fm | fm £m £m
" Loans and other borrowmgs .. 1279 236.7 80.1 230.7 - 21.6 914.6 1,611.6
Payables _ (a) 148.3 - 0.2 © 0.1 - © - 1486
- ) ) ) 276.2 '236.7 80.3 230.8 21.6 914.6 1,760.2 °

{a) Contractual cash flows exclude accrued interest as these cash flows are included within Loans and other borrou}ings.

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans and bond issues in the table above reflect market forward. interest
rates at the reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates change.

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from changes in market rates (e.g. interest rates and foreign currency). Within
the Treasury function, ScottishPower, and therefore the Company, utilises a number of financial instruments to manage -
interest rate exposures. '

B2 TREASURY MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

B2.1 INTEREST RATE RISK i

In order to adequately manage and limit this risk, Iberdrola annually determines the desired structure of the debt between
. fixed and floating interest rate, taking into account the indexing of income’ either interest rate or price index. ScottishPower
Treasury then take actions over the course of the year to work towards these desired Iberdrola ratios. Actions to be carried
out over the course of a year may include obtaining new sources of financing (at a fixed, floating or indexed rate) and/or
utilising interest rate derivatives. The table below shows the debt structure of the Company.

: , ‘ 2020 2019

Interest rate analysis of debt ) .- ' £m £m
Fixed rate i : . i 696.9 748.6
Variablerate . : : ) ' 695.0 610.9
) ) 1,391.9 - 1,359.5

The Company s borrowings are held at amortised cost. The reference interest rates for the floating rate borrowmgs are
London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) and Bank of England Base Rate (“Base”). .

The variable rate debt consnsts of £695.0 mullnon (2019 £570.0 mllllon) LIBOR debt and £nil (2019 £40. 9 m|II|on) ||nked to
Base.
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8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued . )

(b) Financial risk management continued . ' ¥

B.. TREASURY RISK continued

- B2 TREASURY MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT continued .

. B2.2 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS ON INTEREST RATE CHANGES | :
The table below illustrates the |mpact on the annual interest rate charge con51der|ng vanous rate changes The analysis”
assumes all .other factors remain constant ‘

Impact on. Impacton

interest rate interestrate
) ‘ Change' charge in 2020 chargein 2019

Debt Category ‘ - - Interest Rate - ‘inrate £m £m
Loans payable LIBOR debt - . _UBOR +0.25% 1.7 T.14
: ' +0.50% 35 B 2.9
0.25% (17) (1.4)

. . -0.50% (3.5) (2.9) -

Loans payable . Short-termvariablerate ’ Base . +0.25% ’ - 0.1
- ' "+0.50% - 0.2
-0.25% - . (0.1)
: . -0.50% - (0.2)
. Loans receivable Short-termvariable rate Base - +0.25% L - ’ -
o C ' +0.50% (0.1) -
-0.25% - ' .-
" -0.50% 0.1 -

: BZ 3 FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
The Company is exposed- to transactional foreign currency r|sk to the extent that there is a mlsmatch between the
currencies in which purchases aré denominated. These transactions are primarily denominated in Euro. ScottishPower
policy stipulates that there should be no significant exposure -to foreign currency balances and therefore Treasury will
hedge all foreign exchange payments/contracts which have a (cumulatwe) value greater than a sterling equnvalent of a
quarter of a mllllon pounds. :

(i) Hedging of forelgn currency risk .
The Company enters into foreign currency forwards in relation to asset purchases. For such items the Company desugnates
the entire value of the foreign currency forward in the hedge relatlonshlp The notional amount of hedglng instruments at
both 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is £nil. :

(ll) Foreign exchange rate cash flow hedges . :
_The Company is subject to cash flow risk resulting from the purchase of various assets which are denommated in foreign
currencies. The risk being hedged relates to the fluctuation in the functional currency terms of value of these foreign
: currency denominated purchases The Company enters into forward foreign exchange rate contracts to hedge those risks.

The amounts relating to foreign exchange rate derivatives desrgnated as cash flow hedges during the year are detalled in
the table below.

2020 2019
Hedging ~ Hedging
. derivatives derivatives .
. Notes £fm ) £m
Changes in the value of the hedging instrument recognlsed in Other: comprehenswe income = (a) : - 0.2
Amount reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve to balance sheet ’ . (b) - (1.2)

(a) This is consistent with the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument used to calculate ineffectiveness.
(b) The amount reclassified from the cash flow hedge to balance sheet is included within Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction.
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"8 _FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

(b) Financial risk management continued

B. TREASURY RISK continued

B2 TREASURY MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT continued

B2.3 FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK continued

(u) Forelgn exchange rate cash flow hedges continued . :

The amounts at the reportlng date relatmg to foreign exchange items de5|gnated as hedged items were as follows
Change in fair value used ) .

for calculating hedge ) Cash flow hedge

ineffectiveness reserve balance
2020 - - 2019 2020 . 2019
Line item in the Accounts ih which the hedged item is/will be included . . £m - £m £fm £m
Property, plant and equipmentin the course of construction : - 0.2 - -

The Company determines that the economic relationship-between the hedging instrument (the foreign exchange rate
forward contract) and the hedged item (the asset purchase) will virtually always achieve 100% effectiveness. This is
because the Company compares movements in the fair value of the expected highly probable forecast foreign currency'
cash flows, with movements in-the fair value of the expected changes in cash flows from the hedglng instrument. Forecast
future foreign currency cash flows are largely based upon contractual obhgatlons :

Ineffectiveness will arise if the trade .has been cancelled, in which case there would be no future transaction.
Ineffectiveness will also arise if the Company receives notification that the business has been unable to obtain a reliable
price forecast from market sources or if there is a change to the risk management strategy

Hedge assessment on foreign currency dernvatwes : .
Hedge assessment on forelgn currency derivatives is done prospectively to venfy that the forecast transactions are still
highly probable of occurring (for cash flow hedges) as well as retrospectively, to assess the effectivehess.in the period
under review. Prospective assessment is performed using sensitivity analysis and critical terms matching.

Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency cash flows

No sensitivity analysis has been performed in relation to changes in foreign exchange rates as almost all foreign currency
purchases are hedged. Therefore, there is immaterial financial exposure. Any movement in the value of the hedged item
would be compensated for by movement in the value of the hedging instrument.

9 SHARE CAPITAL
2020 ' 2019

£m; £fm’

Allotted, called up and fully pald shares:

385,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each (2019 385, 000 000) ) 385.0 385.0

(a) The holder of these ordinary shares i is entitled to dividends as declared from time'to time; amounts on the capitalisation of profits and reserves; and
notice and attendance at general meetings of the Company, with every member entltled to one vote on a show of hands and on a poll oneé vote for
every share held.
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10 ANALYSIS ‘OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDER OF THE COMPANY

Hedge Retained

Share reserve earnings )

capital _ (Note (a)) {Note (b)) Total

£m _£m £fm . £fm

At 1 January 2019 : 385.0 0.1 707.9. 1,093.0

Profit for the year attributable to equity holder of the Compa ny - - - 154.1 154.1

Changes in the value ofcash flow hedges . . - (0.1) - (0.1)
Dividends g, ' . - - (85.0) (85.0)
‘At 1January 2020 . ' - 1385.0 - 777.0 1,162.0°

Profit for the year attributableto equity holder of the Company - - 136.9 5136.9
Dividends - ) ] . ] - - (94.0) (94.0) -

At 31 December 2020 . ‘ - 385.0 - 819.9 1,204.9

(a) The hedge reserve represents the balance of gains and losses on cash flow hedges (net of taxation) not yet transferred to income or the carrying

amount of a non-financial asset.
(b

shareholders, principally dividends. °

(c) The changes in the hedge resefve arising from valuatlon adJustments to hedging derivatives is set out below
Foreign exchange

Tax effect

Retained earnings comprlse the cumulative balance of profits and losses recognlsed in the fmancual statements as adjusted for transactions W|th

rate hedges Total .. .
Analysis of cash flow hedge reserve £m £m £m
At 1 January 2019 0.1 - 0.1
Effective cash fl ow hedges recognised . . (1.3) 0.2 (1.1)
. Removed from equity and recognised in carrying amount of hedged items 1.2 (0.2) 1.0
At 1 January and 31 December 2020 : - - ' -
.11 DEFERRED INCOME - _ .
At Receivable Released At
1 January during toincome 31 December
- . 2019 year statement 2019
Year ended 31 December 2019 . £m £m ) £fm . £m
Transfer of assets from custome/rs 122.4 12.9 (3.5) ©131.8
A At . Receivable " . Released ) At
1 January , during toincome 31 December
. . . 2020 Disposals year statement 12020
Year ended 31 December 2020 X ~ £m - £m £m £m £m
Transfer of assets from customers 131.8 . (0.2) 24.5 (3.5) © 152.6
_ (a) Transfer of assets from customers is an IFRS 15 ton)tract liability (refer to Note 16(b)).' '
12 PROVISIONS
At Utilised Released At
1January . New .~ during during 31 December
. ] N 2019 © provisions ’ year year 2019
Year ended 31 December 2019 Notes £m : £m £m £m £m’
Decommissioning . (a) - 254 - - 254
Overtime and commission "~ (b) - 0.3 - (0.2) - (0.1) -
B ' 0.3 25.4 (0.2) (0.1) 25.4
. At Unwinding At
1 January New . ' of. 31 December
. . . 2020 provisions . discount . 2020
Year ended 31 December 2020 Note - £m £m £m £m
Decommissioning . (a) 254 4.8 0.3. 30.5
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12 PROVISIONS continued

(a} -

(b)

The provision for decommissioning costs is the discounted future estimated ‘costs of decommissioning certain non-current assets. The °
decommissioning is expected to occur between 2057 and 2058. Had the estimated value of the costs at the balance sheet date beén 10.0% higher
or lower, this.would have resuited in the decommissioning provision being £3.0 million higher and lower respectively. Had the discount rate been
0.25% higher or lower, this would have resulted in the-decommissioning provision being £2.7 million lower and higher respectively.

The provision for overtime and commission comprised probable holiday pay entitlements under the Worklng Time Regulations arising from

commission and overtime. The full balance of the provision was utilised or released during 2019.
(c) All provisions at'31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are classified as non-current in the balance sheet. -

13 'LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

~(a) Analysis by instrument and maturity

) 2020 - 2019

Instrument - Notes Interest rate* Maturity £m £m’
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies - SPUK o Base +1% On demand - 40.9
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies - SPUK . (i), (i) 3.416% .22 December 2022- 52.0 104.0
Loans with iberdrola Group companies - SPUK ° ’ (i), (iii} 3.570% 21 December 2023 88.0 88.0
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies - SPUK (i), (iv) 2.821% 31 March 2025 - 21000 210.0
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies - Iberdrola Financiacion (v) LIBOR +0.78% 20 December 2027 360.0 360.0
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies - SPUK ' (i), (vi) LIBOR +3.365% 28 January 2029 210.0 210.0
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies - Iberdrola Financiacion {vij 6mLIBOR+0.78% 22 December 2030 125.0 -
£350m euro-sterling bond (viii), (ix) 2.000% 13 November 2031 346.9 346.6
: 1,391.9 1,359.5

2020 2019

Ana|ys|s of total loans and other borrowmgs Note £m __£m
Non-current 1,188.2 1,266.9
Current. (x} - 203:7 - 92.6
] 1,391.9 1,359.5

*Base - Bank of England Base Rate; LIBOR — London Inter-Bank Offer Rate

(i)

(i)

. iii)
(iv)
(v}
(vi)
(vii)
+{viii)

{ix)

(x)

Under the conditions of the long-term loan agreements betwéen the Company and Scottish Power UK plc (“SPUK”), the Company has an option,
without fee or penalty, to make a repayment in whole or in part, of the then outstanding loan principal, plus accrued interest thereon, by providing
SPUK with written notice at |east five business days before the intended repayment date.

The loan with SPUK that is repayable in December 2022, is repayable in equal instalments on a biennial basis. The repayment of £52.0 million that
was due in 2020 was classified as current in the 2019 analysis above. ’

The loan with SPUK that is repayable in December 2023, is repayable in equal instalments on a biennial basis. The repayment of £44.0 million that
is due in 2021 is classified as current in the 2020 analysis above.

The loan with SPUK that is repayable in March 2025, is repayable in equal |nstalments on a biennial basis. The repayment of £70.0 million that is
due in 2021 is classified as current in the 2020 analysis above.

The loan with Iberdrola Financiacion that is repayable in December 2027, is repayable in equal instalments on a biennial basis. The repayment of
£90 0 million that is due in 2021 is classified as current in the 2020 analysis above.

The loan with SPUK that is repayable in January 2029 is repayable in full at maturity. .

The loan with Iberdrola Financiacion that is repayable in‘December 2030 is repayable in full at maturity.

This bond contains a ‘Loss of licences’ covenant that will require repayment of the outstanding amount should the Company lose its relevant
licences. .
The £350 million euro-sterling bond will be redeemed at its principal amount on 13 November 2031 unless previously.redeemed or purchased and
cancelled. The bond can be redeemed at any time by the Company at a higher redemption price (as determined by a financial advisor appointed by
the Company and Fiscal Agent) giving.30 to 60 days’ notlce The bond is shown net of finance costs of (£0.3) million (2019 £(0. 3) million), which are
classified as current in the analysis above.

Current borrowings comprise loans with Iberdrola Group companles repayable on demand or within the next year, the short-term element of the
SPUK 2023 loan (refer to footnote {iii) above), the short-term element of the SPUK 2025 loan (refer to footnote (iv) above) and the short-term
element of the SPUK 2027 loan (refer to.footnote (v) above) together with finance costs due to be.amortised within one year (refer to footnote (ix)
above). In 2019 current borrowings comprised the on demand loan with SPUK, the short term element of the 2022 loan with SPUK (refer to footnote

- (i) above) and finance costs due to be amortised within one year which totalled £(0. 3) million,

(xi)

In July 2020 the Company entered into an intra-group committed revolving credit facility arrangement with SPUK for £250.0 million, with an expiry

- date of February 2025 Therefore, at the date of signing these Accounts, the Company has £250.0 million of undrawn committed facilities available.
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13 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS contmued

(b) Reconciliation of movements of |labI|Itles to cash flows arising from fmancmg activities ‘
Llabllltles
Loans and
Loans and other Interest
other borrowings payable
Lease borrowings “(Non- ~ ({Current) .
liabilities” = (Current) current) (Note (i)) Total
P Notes £m £m £m £m £fm
Balanceatl1 January 2019 : ) 8.9 362.1 972.0 17.2 1,360.2
Decrease in amounts due to Iberdrola Group.compa nies (i) - {321.2) - - (321.2)
Cash inflows from borrowings . - - 346.6 - 346.6
Payments of lease liabilities ’ ’ (0.8) - - - (0.8)
Interest paid . - . - - (37.7) (37.7)
Total movements from financing cash flows {0.8) (321.2) 346.6 (37.7) (13.1)
Other movements . (iii) 2.9 51.7 (51.7) 34.9 37.8
Total liability-related movements 2.9 51.7 (51.7) 349 37.8
At 31 December 2019 . . 11.0 92.6 1,266.9 14.4 1,384.9.
Liabilities
Loans and Loans and Interest
other . other payable
Lease borrowings borrowings (Current)
liabilities {Current) (Non-current) {Note (i)} Total
Notes £m £fm . £m £m - £fm -
At1January 2020 ' o110 .. 926 1,266.9 14.4 1,384.9
Decrease in amounts due to Iberdrola Group companies iy ., - (92.9) - - (92.9)
Cash inflows from borrowings ' - - 125.0 - 125.0
Payments of lease liabilities . X o (0.7) - - - (0.7)
Interest paid. {0.3) - - (34.1) (34.4)
Total movements from financing cash flows . (1.0) (92.9) 125.0 {34.1) "~ (3.0)
QOther movements - (iii) 2.2 204.0 (203.7) 33.6 36.1
Total liability-related movements 2.2 204.0 (203.7) 33.6 36.1
At 31 December 2020 12.2 © 203.7 1, 188.2 13. 9 1,418.0

(i) External interest payable of £0.9 million (2019 £0.9 million) and |nternal interest payable of £13. 0 million (2019 £13.5 million) are included within

Trade and other payables (refer to Note 14).

. (i) The cash outflow in the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2020 for ‘Net decrease in amounts due to/from Iberdrola group
companies — current loans’ of £112.2 million (2019 £321.2 million) comprises a decrease of £92.9 million (2019 £321.2 million) in current loans due
to Iberdrola group companies (above) and an increase of £19.3 million {2019 £nil) in current loans receivable from lberdrola group companies

" (included within Trade and other receivables - refer to Note 7).

(iii) Other movements include non-gcash movements, including accrued interest expense and the acqunsmon of lease liabilities

14" TRADE AND oméR PAYABLES

2020 2019
Note £fm £m

Current trade and other payables:
Payables due to tberdrola Group companies - trade 374 375
Payables die to Iberdrola Group companies - interest 13.0 13.5
Payables due to joint ventures - trade 0.1 -
Trade payables 243 " 289
Other taxes and social security 12.2 5.9
Payments received on account . ‘ {a) 18.3 26.1
Capital payables and accruals 68.1 80.5
Other payables 2.3 2.3
175.4 194.7

Non-current othet payables:

Other payables 0.3 . 0.3
03 0.3

{a)  Trade and other payables includes £18.3 million (2019 £26.1 mitlion) of IFRS 15 contract liabilities (refer to Note 16 (b)).
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15 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax provided in the Accounts is as foIIows:

Property, Other
' plant and tem'porary )
equipment differences’ Total
£m . £m’ £m
At 1 January 2019 164.7 , .. . (0.1) 1646
Charge to the income statement 8.1 - - 8.1
At1lJanuary 2020 . ‘ 172.8 (0.1) 172.7
Cha rge to the income statement . . 28 5 - 28.5
At 31 December 2020 ' 201.3 - {0.1) 201.2

" (a) Legislation was previously enacted to reduce the UK rate of Corporation Tax to 17% on 1 April 2020. Accordingly deferred tax balances were measured

at the 17% rate at 31 December 2019. Further legislation was enactéd on 22 July 2020 under the Finance Act 2020 that maintains the 19% UK
Corporation Tax rate. The 19% rate applies from 1 April 2020. This rate change increased the deferred tax fiability by £20.4 million.

(b) inthe 3 March 2021 Budget, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that the UK tax rate will increase to 25% from 1 April 2023. This will have a

consequentlal effect on the Company's future tax charge. If this rate change had been substantively enacted at the current balance sheet date the

deferred tax liability would have been £63.5 million higher.

16. REVENUE
(a) Disaggregation of revenue
- 2020 2019
£m £m
Electricity transmission 397.8 396.7
Transfers of assets from customers - 3.5 3.5
401.3 400.2
"All revenue is recognised over time and arises from operations within the UK.
(b) -Contract balances
' ’ ‘ 2020 2019 2018
. Notes £m £m £m
Receivables . . : (i) ) - - ‘0.2
Contract liabilities ‘ (i), (iii) {(170.9) (157.9) (155.8)

(i) Net expected credit losses of less ihan £0.1 million were recognised during both years on receivables arising.from the Company’s contracts with

customers (refer to Note 8).

(i), £152.6 million {2019 £131.8 million) of contract liabilities relates to the transfér of assets from customers which is recorded wrthm Deferred income
(refer to Note 11). The remainder is included with Trade and other payables (refer to Note 14).
(iii) The movement in the contract liabilities in the _year comprises a net increase in transfers of assets from customers and payments on account of

£16.5 million (2019 net increase of £5.6 million) less contract liabilities recognised as income in the year of £3.5 million (2019 £3.5 million):

17 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
(a) staff costs

2019

2020

: £m £fm

"Wages and salaries 21.2 203
Social security costs 23 2.2
‘Pension and other costs 4.6 4.6
Total staff costs " 281 1271

~ Less: capitalised staff costs (22.8) -(20.9)
Charged to the income statement 5.3 6.2

(i) Employee costs for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 include those in respect of one director, Scott Mathieson. The
emoluments of all other directors are included within the employee costs of other ScottishPower companies. Details of directors' emoluments-are

set out in Note 26(c).
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17 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION continued
(b) Employee numbers
The average numbers of employees (fuII and part-time) employed by the Company, mcIudmg UK based dlrectors, were:

Average Average

. 2020 2019

Administrative staff o . : 52 .50
_Operations - : ' . - .- 303 295
Total - - ' 355 345

(c) Pensions

The Company's contnbutuons payable in the year were £4.2 million (2019 £4.2 m|II|on) The Company contributes to the
ScottishPower Group's defined benefit and defined contribution schemes in the UK and the contributions payable in the
year reflect the contributions payable in resbec't of active participants in the Group schemes who are employed by the
Company. Full details of these schemes are provided in the most recent’Annual Report and Accounts of SPL. As at 31
. December 2020, the deficit in ScottishPower's defined benefit schemes in the UK amounted to £558.6 million (2019 £651.7
million). The employer contribution rate for these schemes in the year ended 31 December 2020 was 47.9% - 51.0%. '

©18 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX - . .
' 2020 . 2019

. . £m £m
Property taxes : : : ] I 36.1 35.9
19 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION CHARGE,'ALLOWANCES AND PROVISIONS ,
‘ 2020 . . 2019
. £m £m’
Property, plant and equipment depreciation charge ' . . 86.2 829
Right-of-use asset ‘depreciation charge ' ) : ' 0.8 0.8
Charges and provisions, allowances and impairment of assets . B : 04 ) -
o : o : ‘ 874 .. 837
"Capitalised right-of-use asset depreciation -(0.4) - (0.4)
' - 87.0 833
20 FINANCE INCOME -
2020 2019
-£m - fm
Foreign exchange gains . i L 0.1 - 0.1
N
21 FINANCE COSTS :
' ’ . 2020 . 2019
. ) ' ) " fm £m
Interest on amounts due to Iberdrola Group companies ’ ) 26.7 . 341
Interest on other borrowings , .. .73 . 1.0
‘Unwinding of discount on provisions . ' 03 -
Interest on lease liabilities : 04 "~ 03
Foreign exchange losses . ] . - 0.1
' , ’ , ' 347 . 355
Capitalised interest - . - - (0.6)
' - ' 34.7 34.9
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22 INCOME TAX

2019 .

. 2020
£m £m
Current tax: . « o
UK Corporation Tax charge on profits for the year 309 280
_Adjustments in respect of prior years {0.6) 0.1
Current tax for the.year 30.3 28.1
Deferred tax: ) )
Orlglnatlon and reversal of temporary differences 71 8.8
Adjustments in respect of prior years ’ 1.0 0.2
Impact of tax rate change. ©20.4 (0.9)
Deferred tax for the year ) 28.5 8.1
Income tax expense for the year 58.8 36.2

The tax charge on profit on ordinary activities for the year varied from the standard rate of UK Corporatlon Tax appllcable

to the Company as follows:.

2019

2020
£m £m
Corporation Tax at 19% (2019 19%) 37.2 36.2
" Adjustments in respect of prior yeats 04 0.3
Impact of tax rate change : . 204 (0.9)
Non-deductible expenses and other permanent differences 0.8 0.6
58.8

Income tax expense for the year

36.2

Legislation was previously enacted to reduce the UK rate of Corporation Tax to 17% on 1 April 2020. Accordingly deferred tax balances were measured
at the 17% rate at 31 December 2019. Further legislation was.enacted on 22 July 2020 under the Finance Act 2020 that maintains the 19% UK Corporation .
Tax rate. The 19% rate applies from'1 April 2020. This rate change increased the deferred tax liability by £20.4 million. Refer to Note 15 {b) for dEtBI|S of

future tax rate changes.:

Lo~

23 DIVIDENDS .
2020 2019 2020 '2019.
pence per ordinéryshare - __pence perordinaryshare’ £m £m
24.4 22.1 94.0 85.0

Interim dividend paid

24 CONTING ENT LIABILITIES

As part of the exercise to achieve legal separatlon of SPUK's businesses pursuant to the provision of the Utilities Act 2000,
the Company and other subsidiary companies of SPUK have provided guarantées to external lenders of SPUK for debt
existing in that company at 1 October 2001. The value of debt guaranteed by these companies, WhICh was still outstandmg
at 31 December 2020 was £1,057.1 million (2019 £1,052.2 million).

' 25 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS'
Contractual commitments

2020

. . 2026 and . .

2021 2022 2023 ° 2024 2025 thereafter - Total

£m £fm__ £m £m £m £m £m

Contractual commitments - 8.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 - - 11.7

12019
2025 and

2020 2021 2022 . 2023 2024 thereafter Total -

£m £fm £m £m . £m £m £m

Contractual commitments 8.6 1.2 1.1 - 12.1°

1.2 -
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS . -
- (a) .Transactions and balances arising in the normal course of business

2020 2019
) Other - Other
Immediate Iberdrola Immediate- |berdrola i
‘UK parent parent Group Joint UK parent parent Group Joint
{SPL) (SPENH) companies ventures (SPL) (SPENH) companies ventures
£m “£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Types of transaction ' . i
Sales and rendering of services ’ : - - - 0.2 - .- 0.4 0.5
Purchases and receipt of services’ ' - . (37.1) {0.1) - - (36.9) : -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment - . - - - - - (1.3} (31.2)
Interest costs - - . (26.7) - {0.2) (33.9) -
Changes in the value of cash flow hedge reserve - . - - - T (0.1) - - -
Dividends paid - (94.0) - - - (85.0) - -
Balances outstanding . :
Loans receivable : ) - - - 193 . N N - - -
Trade and other receivables . 04 - : - 0.2 03 - - 0.4
Loans payable . - - - (1,0850) - - - - (1,012.9) L.
Trade and other payables N - - (37.1) (0.1) - - © (37.5) -
Interest payable ) - - _(13.0) - - - {13.5) -

(i) Durmg the year ended 31 December 2020, SPUK made pension contributions of £4.2 million.on behalf of the Company (2019 £4.2 million):
(i) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash No guarantees have been glven or received in relation to the above related

party transactions.

'(b) Remuneration of key management personnel _

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Company is set out below. As all.of the key management
personnel are remunerated for their work for Energy Networks, it has not been possible to apportion the remuneration
specifically in respect of services to this Company Of the 15 (2019 13) key management personnel, 13 (2019 eleven) were’

remunerated by other ScottishPower companies during the year. ) )
2020 2019

. £000 £000
Short-term employee benefits . 2,198 2,320
" Post-employment benefits _ B 332 293
Termination benefits - ’ : ) 118 -
Share-based payments ’ : ) ‘2,110 1,156
~ ' 4,758 3,769

(c) Directors' remuneration ;
The total remuneration of the directors that provided qualifying services to the Company are shown below. As these -
directors are remunerated for their work for Energy Networks, it has not been possible to apportion the remuneration
-specifically in respect of services to this Company. Of the six (2019 5|x) d|rectors four (2019 four) were remunerated by

other ScottishPower companies during the year

2020 2019

. £000 £000

Aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services . . - - . © 1,423 1,462
.Number of directors who exercised share options : 2 - 2
Number of directors who received shares under a long-term incentive scheme 3 . 3
Number of directors accruing retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme. 2 B 2
: . 2020 . 2019

Highest paid director : : : £000 £000
Aggregate remuneration » . ‘ ' - 830 B 839
Accrued pension benefit - 101 .99

. (i) The highest paid director received shares undera long-term, incentive scheme durmg both years.
“o(ii) The hnghest pald director exercised share options during’ both years.
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued
(d) Ultimate and immediate parent company -

The immediate parent company is SPENH The registered offlce of SPENR is 320 St Vlncent Street, Glasgow Scotland,

G2 5AD.

The directors regard Iberdrola, S.A. (incorporated in Spam) as the ultimate parent company, which is also the parent
company of the largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated. The parent company of the smallest

group in which the results of the Company. are consolidated is SPUK.

vCoples of the consolidated accounts of Iberdrola S.A. may be obtamed from the registered office of the company at .
Iberdrola, S. A , Torre Iberdrola, Plaza Euskadi 5, 48009, Bilbao, Spain. Copies of the consolidated accounts of SPUK may be

obtained from |ts registered office, 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow G2 5AD.

In addition to the parent undertakmgs disclosed above, the Company’s other related undertaking is disclosedin Note 5.

27 AUDITOR REMUNERATION

. . 2020 2019

. : - . £000 £000 -
Audit of the Company's annual accounts and regulatory accounts ' ) 171 96
Audit-related assurance services : : . ) - 35
Total ‘ ] : - 171 131
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